
Page 1 of 4 

September 14, 2020 Galena City Council Meeting 

Notice of Meeting by Teleconference 

Due to the essential nature of public meetings in conducting official City business and in an effort to 
protect against the spread of COVID‐19 during public gatherings, the upcoming Monday, September 14, 
2020  Galena  City  Council  meeting  will  take  place  via  teleconference  utilizing  Zoom  Video 
Communications.  The  meeting  will  be  conducted  at  Zoom  meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88029348871 (Meeting  ID: 880 2934 8871) or 312‐626‐6799, with the 
following changes, additional opportunities to participate, and reminders: 
 
• MEETING START TIME – City Council meeting will start at 6:30 p.m.  

  

• PUBLIC  COMMENT  –  Public  Comment  will  be  conducted  as  usual  near  the  beginning  of  the 

meeting. To ensure the public will be able to participate the city is providing three ways in which 

the public can submit their comments. These same three methods may be used for commenting 

during public hearings. 

 

1. TELECONFERENCED — Public is invited to participate via Zoom Video Communications, meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88029348871 (Meeting ID: 880 2934 8871. When the presiding 

officer calls for public comments during the meeting, an attendee wishing to speak by video 

and/or audio link will be asked to “raise hand”. 

 

A. If using a PC or Mac: 

 

1. During a meeting, click on the icon labeled "Participants" at the bottom center of 

your PC or Mac screen.  

 

2. At the bottom of the now open “Participants” window on the right side of the 

screen, click the button labeled "Raise Hand." Your digital hand is now raised. The 

meeting  presiding officer will  recognize  you  to  speak  for  not more  than  three 

minutes. Your audio and video will be enabled by the meeting host. 

  

3. After speaking, lower you hand by clicking the same button, now labeled "Lower 

Hand." Your audio and video will be disabled by the meeting host. 

 

B. If using a mobile device:  

 

1. During a meeting, tap the screen and click on the icon labeled "More" on the top 

right of the screen. Tap "Raise Hand". A blue hand icon will appear next to your 

name on the “Participants” list. Your digital hand is now raised.  

2. The meeting presiding officer will recognize you to speak for not more than three 

minutes. Your audio and video will be enabled by the meeting host. 

3. After speaking, lower you hand by tapping the “More” icon and then tap "Lower 

Hand." Your audio and video will be disabled by the meeting host. 

Page 1 of 69



Page 2 of 4 

2. E‐MAILED  –  Public  comments  or  public  hearing  testimony  can  be  submitted  via  email  to 

mmoran@cityofgalena.org with the subject "City Council Public Comment". The City Clerk will 

read emails received out loud (up to 3 minutes) into the public record. 

 

3. MAILED – Public comments or public hearing testimony can be mailed to the Galena City Clerk, 

101 Green Street, Galena,  IL  61036.  Please  include  "City Council  Public  Comment" on  the 

outside of the envelope. The City Clerk will read written comments received out loud (up to 3 

minutes) into the public record. Please know that postage delivery time could cause the mailing 

to arrive after the meeting time. 

 

• SOCIAL DISTANCING – Public meetings will be conducted via teleconference/virtually utilizing Zoom 

Video  Communications  to  insure  recommended  social  distancing.  Join  the  meeting  at 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88029348871  (Meeting  ID:  880  2934  8871).  The  public  may  also 

participate by phone by calling 312‐626‐6799 and entering the meeting ID. 

 

• AGENDA — The meeting agenda follows this page and is posted at www.cityofgalena.org and on 

the exterior of City Hall, 101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois.  

 

• NOTICE  – Members of  the public  participating  in  the meeting  via  Zoom will  be muted unless 

recognized by the presiding officer to speak. Participants joining the meeting via Zoom agree that 

video and/or audio from their computer or device may be broadcast to other meeting participants 

and may be recorded. By joining the meeting, participants also agree that their video feed to the 

meeting may be disabled by the presiding officer and their audio feed may be muted. Members of 

the public participating via Zoom are encouraged to test their system prior to the meeting start 

time and become familiar with  the Zoom operating system and any changes  to  the operating 

system that may have been made by Zoom. 

 

• QUESTIONS — Questions about the teleconference meeting may be directed to City Administrator, 

Mark Moran at mmoran@cityofgalena.org or 815‐777‐1050. 

 

Page 2 of 69



Page 3 of 4 

 
 

 

City of Galena, Illinois 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

6:30 P.M., MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 14, 2020 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88029348871 (Meeting ID: 880 2934 8871) or 312‐626‐6799 
 
  

ITEM                                                            DESCRIPTION 
 

20C‐0351. 
 
Call to Order by Presiding Officer 

20C‐0352. Roll Call 

20C‐0353. Establishment of Quorum 
20C‐0354. Pledge of Allegiance 
20C‐0355. Reports of Standing Committees 
20C‐0356. Citizens Comments 

 Not to exceed 15 minutes as an agenda item 

 Not more than 3 minutes per speaker 
   

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

None. 
 

LIQUOR COMMISSION 
 

None. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA CA20‐17 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

20C‐0357. 
 
Approval of the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of August 24, 2020  

5‐10 

 
20C‐0358. 

 
Approval of a Request by the Galena Lions Club to Collect Donations for Lions 
Club Mints at Washington Park on October 3, 2020 

 
11 

 
20C‐0359. 

 
Approval of a Request by the Galena‐Jo Daviess County Historical Society and 
Museum to Use the Grant Park Pavilion for Theatrical Performances on October 
3, 4, 10, 17, 18, 24, and 25   

12 

Page 3 of 69



Page 4 of 4 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

None. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

 

CALENDAR INFORMATION  
 

 

BOARD/COMMITTEE  DATE  TIME  LOCATION 

Historic Preservation 
Commission 

Cancelled Until 
Further Notice 

    

City Council    Mon. September 28  6:30 P.M.  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89553318309  

Meeting ID: 895 5331 8309  

Zoning Board of 
Appeals 

Wed. October 14  6:30 P.M. https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85383395991  

Meeting ID: 853 8339 5991 

 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 
20C‐0361. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on Extending Outdoor Seating Permits through 
October 31, 2020 

 
13‐16 

 
20C‐0362. 

 
First Reading of the Small Wireless Facilities Deployment Ordinance and Master 
Pole Agreement 

 
17‐47 

 
20C‐0363. 

 
First Reading of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 151 of the Galena Code of 
Ordinances, “Historic Preservation”, to Reference the Current Historic District 
Boundary Map   

 
48‐50 

 
20C‐0364. 

 
Discussion and Approval of IEPA Loan 17‐1946 Disbursement Request #2 in the 
Amount of $324,104.67, Including Construction and Construction Observation  

 
51‐58 

 
20C‐0365. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on Renewal of Employee Health, Dental, Life, 
Disability and Vision Insurance Policies and Health Savings Account Distributions 

 
59‐61 

 
20C‐0366. 

 
Warrants 

 
62‐69 

20C‐0367. Alderpersons’ Comments   
20C‐0368. City Administrator’s Report    
20C‐0369.  Mayor’s Report   
20C‐0370.  Motion for Executive Session Including:  

 Section 2 (c) (2) – Collective negotiating matters and deliberations 
concerning salary schedules. 

 Section 2 (c) (11) – Pending, probable or imminent litigation.  

 

20C‐0371.  Adjournment   

Page 4 of 69



Regular Board Meeting  24 August 2020 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 24 AUGUST 2020 
 

20C-0330 – CALL TO ORDER 
  
Mayor Renner called the regular meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Board Chambers at 101 
Green Street on 24 August 2020.  
 
20C-0331 – ROLL CALL 
 
Upon roll call, the following members were present via Zoom teleconference:  Allendorf, Hahn, 
Kieffer, McCoy, Westemeier, Renner 
 
Absent:  Bernstein (arrived at 6:34 p.m.) 
 
20C-0332 – ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 
 
Mayor Renner announced a quorum of Board members present to conduct City business.   
 
20C-0333 – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge was recited.    
 
20C-0334 - REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
 
No reports.   
 
20C-0335 – CITIZENS COMMENTS 
 
None.   
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Motion:    Kieffer moved, seconded by Allendorf, to open the public hearings on an annexation 
agreement with J. William Vincent and Robert Dickinson of Ramonalisa LLC for the Grant Hills 
Motel, 9372 US Route 20 West and to review project performance and obtain citizens input 
regarding the completed Downtown Sidewalk Replacement Program.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Hahn, Kieffer, McCoy, Westemeier, Allendorf, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Bernstein 
         

The motion carried.  
 
20C-0336 – PUBLIC HEARING ON AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT WITH J. WILLIAM 
VINCENT AND ROBERT DICKINSON OF RAMONALISA LLC FOR THE GRANT HILLS 
MOTEL, 9372 US ROUTE 20 WEST 
 
Testimony:  None.   
 
20C-0337 – PUBLIC HEARING TO REVIEW PROJECT PERFORMANCE AND OBTAIN 
CITIZENS INPUT REGARDING THE COMPLETED DOWNTOWN SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT 
PROJECT 
 
City Clerk, Mary Beth Hyde, read the following:   
 

Page 5 of 69



Regular Board Meeting  24 August 2020 
 

The City of Galena is holding a Public Hearing to obtain citizens’ views on the recently completed 
sidewalk improvements project. The first public hearing was held in January 2018, prior to the 
City’s submission of a Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Public Infrastructure 
application to the Illinois Department of Commerce & Economic Opportunity (DCEO).  
 
The City applied for DCEO grant monies in February 2018 and the application met at least two of 
the three national objectives:  1) benefit low-and-moderate income persons; 2) aid in the 
prevention or elimination of slum and blight; and 3) addressed a problem that posed a serious 
and immediate threat to the health and welfare of the community.  In May 2018, the City received 
an approval letter from DCEO that they were awarded the grant contingent on the completion of 
special grant conditions.  
 
An Environmental Review was completed for this project, and environmental clearance letters 
were secured from the required state and federal agencies.  No public comments were received 
during the public comment period.  DCEO provided a clearance letter on August 29, 2018 stating 
that the City had satisfied all the environmental and special grant conditions.  This letter allowed 
for construction of the project to move forward.  On October 23, 2018 the City received the formal 
grant agreement and grant award in the amount of $373,405.25. The grant had a two-year 
contract, with an end date of September 30, 2020.   
 
The City of Galena’s downtown sidewalk improvements project entailed the replacement of 2,327 
linear feet of 5” thick by 8-foot-wide sidewalk, 244 linear feet of 7” thick by 8-foot-wide sidewalk 
and 346 linear feet of 9” thick by 6-foot-wide crosswalk.  
 
The Sidewalk Improvements Project was advertised on January 16, 2019, with three bids 
received.  The project was awarded to Louie’s Trenching Service (the low responsible bidder) on 
February 14, 2019 in the amount of $373,405.00 for the DCEO project area.   
 
Community Funding & Planning Services (CFPS) was hired by the City of Galena to administer 
the CDBG grant.  The fee for these services was $23,500.00; this fee was paid out of the City 
funds.  
 
The CDBG grant funds contributed all $373,405.25 for construction services.  
 
Testimony:  None 
 
Motion:   Allendorf moved, seconded by Hahn, to close the public hearing on items 20C-0336 
and 20C-0337.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Hahn, Kieffer, McCoy, Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
         

The motion carried.  
 

CONSENT AGENDA CA20-16 
 
20C-0338 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 
AUGUST 10, 2020 
 
20C-0339 – APPROVAL OF BUDGET AMENDMENT BA21-05 FOR A PROFESSIONAL 
STUDY OF PHOSPHORUS REMOVAL OPTIONS FOR THE WASTEWATER TREATMENT 
PLANT 
 
20C-0340 – APPROVAL OF AN ON-STREET PARKING SPACE IN FRONT OF 224 N. BENCH 
STREET FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES 

Page 6 of 69



Regular Board Meeting  24 August 2020 
 

 
20C-0341 – ACCEPTANCE OF JULY 2020 FINANCIAL REPORT 
 
Motion:   Bernstein moved, seconded by McCoy, to approve Consent Agenda, CA-16.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, McCoy, Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Hahn, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
         

The motion carried.  
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
20C-0321 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A RETAIL SPACE LEASE 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF GALENA AND THE GALENA CULTURAL ARTS 
ALLIANCE FOR SPACE IN THE MARKET HOUSE RESTROOM BUILDING 
 
Motion:   McCoy moved, seconded by Hahn, to approve the retail space lease agreement 
between the City of Galena and the Galena Cultural Arts Alliance for space in the Market House 
Restroom Buildings with the elimination of item 15, automatic renewal, through April 30, 2021, 
20C-0321.   
 
Discussion:  McCoy stated he would prefer to see the automatic renewal eliminated.  In the 
event that the city would get lucky and get some kind of grant money to expand the building to all 
restrooms, he would like the option to be able to do it and not be obligated to rent it out for 
another year or two.  McCoy was fine with keeping the rent at $200 for the first year but feels the 
rent should increase in the second year to prevailing rent for the property. 
 
Kieffer feels the rent should be more.  He noted expenses for the building were $11,550. Hahn 
agreed.  He voiced concern with picking one group or business to subsidize.  Hahn agrees the 
rent should be increased to prevailing rent for downtown businesses in May.    
 
Council agreed to set the rent at $200 per month until April 30, 2021.  Council will take a look at it 
at that time and determine the prevailing rent for the property.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  McCoy, Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
         

The motion carried.  
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
20C-0342 – FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN 
ANNEXATION AGREEMENT WITH J. WILLIAM VINCENT AND ROBERT DICKINSON OF 
RAMONALISA LLC FOR THE GRANT HILLS MOTEL, 9372 US ROUTE 20 WEST 
 
Motion:   Kieffer moved, seconded by Allendorf, to approve the first reading, waive the second, 
reading of an ordinance authorizing the execution of an annexation agreement with J. William 
Vincent and Robert Dickinson of Ramonalisa LLC for the Grant Hills Motel, 9372 US Route 20 
West amended to include adding the following language to section 7.1, “if the public water system 
is adequate for the use of the property”.   
   
Discussion:  Mayor Renner recommended the second sentence under section 7.1 read as 
follows:   
 

Page 7 of 69



Regular Board Meeting  24 August 2020 
 

“All buildings on the property that are required by building code to have potable water service 
shall be connected to the public water system, if the public water system is adequate for the 
use of the property.”   
 
Allendorf questioned why the connection fees were reduced by 75 percent.  Moran advised all 
costs will be borne by the property owner.  The proposal to reduce the connection fee was made 
by the applicant.   
 
Amended 
Motion:    Kieffer moved, seconded by Allendorf, to amend the motion to add the following 
language to section 7.1, “if the public water system is adequate for the use of the property”.   
 
Discussion:  None. 
 
Amended 
Motion 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Allendorf, Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, McCoy, Westemeier, Renner  
  NAYS:  None  
            

The motion carried.  
 
Main 
Motion 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, McCoy, Renner  
  NAYS:  None  
            

The motion carried.  
 
20C-0343 – FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING 3.5 ACRES OF TERRITORY IN 
EAST GALENA TOWNSHIP, COMMONLY KNOWN AS THE GRANT HILLS MOTEL, 9372 US 
ROUTE 20 WEST 
 
Motion:  Bernstein moved, seconded by Allendorf, to approve the first reading, waive the second 
reading, of an ordinance annexing 3.5 acres of territory in East Galena Township, commonly 
known as the Grant Hills Motel, 9372 US Route 20 West.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, Westemeier, Allendorf, Renner  
  NAYS:  McCoy 
            

The motion carried.  
 
20C-0344 – FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE TO REZONE THE PROPERTY AT 9372 US 
ROUTE 20 WEST, COMMONLY KNOWN AS THE GRANT HILLS MOTEL, FROM LIMITED 
AGRICULTURAL TO GENERAL COMMERCIAL 
 
Motion:  Allendorf moved, seconded by Westemeier, to approve the first reading, waive the 
second reading, of an ordinance to rezone the property at 9372 US Route 20 West, commonly 
known as the Grant Hills Motel, from Limited Agricultural to General Commercial, 20C-0344.     
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Hahn, Kieffer, McCoy, Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Renner  
  NAYS:  None 
            

The motion carried.  

Page 8 of 69



Regular Board Meeting  24 August 2020 
 

 
20C-0345 – WARRANTS 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Hahn, to approve the Warrants as presented, 20C-0345.  
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, McCoy, Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Hahn, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
      

The motion carried.  
 
20C-0346 – ALDERPERSONS’ COMMENTS 
 
Downtown – Kieffer stated it is great to see the downtown busy.  He likes the new “mask up” 
signs in the downtown.  McCoy and Hahn agreed.   
 
Galena – Westemeier stated we have a perfect place to live and visit.  We are very diverse in 
what we have to offer.  We have lots to provide visitors and locals such as canoeing, kayaking 
and biking.  He agrees it is nice to see people coming to town.   
 
Parking – Allendorf agreed with the previous comments.  He advised he was in the downtown 
over the weekend.  He questions if the City could relook at opening up some of the parking 
spaces that are closed off on both sides of the street.  Parking is a huge issue on Saturday night.   
 
Parking App – Bernstein advised some time ago there were talks about developing an app for 
tourists to know where parking is available.  She recommended thinking about that again.   
 
20C-0347 – CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S COMMENTS 
 
Parking – Moran advised he has been working with St. Mary’s Church to allow use of their 
parking lot on Franklin Street.  The signs are complete and ready to be installed.   
 
Rec Park Parking – The new parking at Rec Park has been completed.  The City has received 
the final payment from the state.  The full amount was $50,000.   
 
20C-0348 – MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
Mayor Renner agreed with the comments made in reference to downtown.  We have more 
activities for family groups to come and enjoy.  All is going well, and he hopes that continues.   
 
20C-0349 – MOTION FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Motion:   Allendorf moved, seconded by Kieffer, to recess to Executive Session to discuss the 
following: 
 

 Employee hiring, firing, compensation, discipline and performance, Section 2 (c) (1) 
 
Discussion:  None. 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, McCoy, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
       

The motion carried.  
 
The meeting recessed 7:01 p.m. 
 

Page 9 of 69



Regular Board Meeting  24 August 2020 
 

The meeting reconvened at 7:30 p.m. 
 
20C-0350 – ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion:   Hahn moved, seconded by Kieffer, to adjourn.   
 
Discussion:   None. 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, McCoy, Westemeier, Allendorf, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
       

The motion carried.  
   
The meeting adjourned at 7:30 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Mary Beth Hyde 
City Clerk 

Page 10 of 69



From: Lenny Wayne Hosey <lennywh1@gmail.com>  

Sent: Monday, August 31, 2020 9:48 AM 

To: Mark Moran <mmoran@cityofgalena.org> 

Subject: Galena Lions 

 

Hello Mark, 

As you are probably aware the Galena Lions Oktoberfest will not be happening this year. :( 

We do however wish to go ahead with our candy day fundraiser. 

Typically we do this on the Halloween weekend, But this year because of the festival cancellation we 

would like to have Candy Day on the weekend that would be Oktoberfest.  

October 3rd  

Our people would wear masks and gloves just as servers at cafes etc. 

We would have a two man team at Tammy’s Piggly Wiggly. And we would like to have a team at 

Washington park.  

We will be handing out Lions Club Mints and accepting donations.  

100% of our collected donations go back into our community. Primarily to help those with vision and 

hearing issues and for programs helping children. 

Due to the rain out last year and the cancellation of Oktoberfest this year, we are in need of funds to 

help area needs. 

Thank you, 

Lenny Hosey  

Galena Lions  

 

Page 11 of 69



 
 
 
 
 
 
September 2, 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dear Mayor Renner and members of the Galena City Council: 
 
 
The Galena Jo Daviess County Historical Society requests approval to use the Grant Park 
pavilion for performances of “Galena Tapestry: Galena’s story told by some of its most 
famous and infamous past citizens”. 
 
These performances would take place on the following dates: October 3, 4, 10, 17, 18, 24, 
and 25. Performances would be approximately 50 minutes long and would be done multiple 
times each date:  3pm, 4pm, 5pm and 6pm. Three costumed actors would perform 
monologues, written and directed by Ronn Toebaas, from previous Cemetery Walks. 
Audiences would be limited to 10 people per performance time and would be seated in a 
socially distanced manner and would be required to wear masks.  
 
We feel that this historically based entertainment will be welcomed by locals and visitors as 
other events have been cancelled. The pavilion provides a place where we can achieve social 
distancing in a more open space that is also somewhat protected from the weather. Ticket 
price will be $20 and all proceeds will go towards the Galena Jo Daviess County Historical 
Society. The Society will take care of selling tickets (for the most part on line) and for 
welcoming and managing seating of audience members. The Society also plans to have a 
small selection of items from the Museum store for sale, as well as information about the 
Galena History Museum and Blacksmith attractions. 
 
Thank you for consideration of our request for usage of the pavilion space. We are happy to 
answer any questions. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Jean Matthiessen 
Interim Executive Director 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 
   
 
 
 

Jean Matthiessen 
Interim 

Executive Director 
 
 

Board of Directors 
 
 

Christine Harris 
President 

 
Bonnielynn Kreiser 

Vice President 
 

Kris Chapman 
Secretary 

 
Doug Hilgendorf 

Treasurer 
 
 

Mike Blaum 
 

Steve Coates 
 

Bonnie Cox 
 

Alice Ericksen 
 

Dawn Freese 
 

Kathleen Morgan 
 

Cory Ritterbusch 
 

Frances Rivoire 
 

Bryon Taylor 
 
 

Galena & U.S. Grant Museum * Old Blacksmith Shop 

Museum 
211 S. Bench Street 

Galena, Illinois 61036  
Phone: 815.777.9131 

 
www.galenahistory.org 

info@galenahistorymuseum.org 

 

Administrative Office 
513 Bouthillier Street 
Galena, Illinois 61036  
Phone: 815.777.9129 

 

 

Page 12 of 69

http://www.galenahistorymuseum.org/


CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    September 9, 2020 

RE:    Outdoor Seating   
 
 
The Galena Downtown Business Association requests the city council consider extending the 
outdoor seating permits through the last day of October. Prior council action set the final day 
for the permits as October 11.  I am attaching letters from the GDBA and the Galena Area 
Chamber of Commerce in support of the extension. 
 
I also suggest you consider establishing a timeline for making a decision about permitting 
outdoor seating in 2021. There is considerable interest from the bars and restaurants in 
repeating what has been a very positive experience this year.  Perhaps a public hearing on the 
topic could be conducted late this year to obtain input. A decision early in 2021 would give our 
staff time to make any needed changes to the guidelines and permitting process.  
 
Please feel free to contact me with any questions. 
 

 

Page 13 of 69



1

Mark Moran

From: Galena Downtown Business Assoc. <gdbaemail@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, August 31, 2020 5:55 PM
To: Mark Moran
Cc: Alana Turner; Deb Mikol; Michelle Berning; dtmeadows@aol.com
Subject: GDBA supports extending outdoor seating

Follow Up Flag: Flag for follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Categories: Email Response Needed

Hello,  
 
I am writing to offer our support for the extension of outdoor dining from Mid October to October 31st. When asking 
our membership for their feedback on this subject, the response we received back was a 100% yes.  Everyone was in full 
agreement that customers really love the set up of the outdoor dining and that it adds to the ambiance of our 
downtown.  Most of the responses support it so much that they are requesting the city start the planning stages 
necessary to accommodate for the outdoor seating again next year.  
 
There are a couple items that our members feel  would need addressing in order to do long‐term plans for outdoor 
seating. These items would be: finding additional parking to offset the closed Main Street and also figuring out a better 
method for deliveries and garbage pick up during the closer.  
 
We hope you will consider extending the downtown outdoor seating for this year and also consider planning it for future 
years.  
 
Thank‐ you!  
 
Galena Downtown Business Assoc 
 
Warm regards,  
Alana Turner 
VP 
Galena Downtown Business Assoc 
 
 

Page 14 of 69



1

Mark Moran

From: Galena Chamber Director <director@galenachamber.com>
Sent: Monday, August 31, 2020 5:34 PM
To: Mark Moran; (NVondra@communitybankgalena.com); jh.galenachamber; Dana Meadows
Subject: Outdoor Dining Extension 

Follow Up Flag: Flag for follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Categories: Email Response Needed

 
Hello, I am writing to offer our support for the extension of outdoor dining from Mid October to October 31st. We have 
received several compliments from visitors who enjoy dining outdoors on Main Street.  
 
Thank‐ you!  
 
Galena Area Chamber of Commerce  
 
Warm regards,  
Angela DeVere 
Executive Director  
Galena Area Chamber of Commerce 
 

Page 15 of 69



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator  

DATE:    September 9, 2020 

RE:    Small Cell Wireless Ordinance  
 
Throughout the country, wireless carriers are building out “small cell” 5G networks to improve 
capacity and service to cellular customers, especially in high use areas like downtowns. Small 
cell technology involves mounting small antennas and radio equipment, usually on existing 
utility poles, and connecting the devices by fiber to the larger network. Galena, where the 
cellular network can be overloaded on days of heavy visitation, would benefit from small cell 
technology. The 5G service would be 100 times faster than the current 4G technology and 
would have the ability to handle many more devices simultaneously. A description of small cell 
technology is shown in Image 1 below. 

 
Image 1. Small Cell Description 

 

 

 

Page 16 of 69



2 of 2 

In 2018, Illinois adopted Public Act 100‐0585, the Small Wireless Facilities Deployment Act. The 
act specifies how cities may regulate small cell wireless facilities. After the act was adopted, the 
Illinois Municipal League developed a model regulatory ordinance for cities based on the act. 
Our staff has reviewed the model ordinance and adapted it to the City of Galena. I am attaching 
the ordinance for your consideration.  
 
The ordinance creates a process for cellular carriers to apply for approval of small cell 
installations (small wireless facilities) in Galena. The ordinance also sets standards for 
construction and establishes fees and rates. Some of the key provisions are as follows: 

 

 Defines that small wireless facilities are permitted uses when in the right of way 

 Allows for the combination of up to 25 small wireless facilities in one application  

 Explains that the City must approve or deny an application within 90 days if the facility is 
collocated on an existing pole or within 120 days if the facility is located on a new pole 

 Explains that the City can deny an application if it does not comply with the ordinance  

 Requires installations to comply with City design standards and the historic preservation 
ordinance 

 Requires a Master Pole Agreement between the City and the carrier for each approved 
application  

 Specifies that permits for small wireless facilities shall not be for less than five years   

 Establishes an application fee $650 plus $350 for each small cell facility collocated and 
$1,000 for each facility on a new pole 

 Creates an annual recurring rate of $200 per small wireless facility  

 Sets an insurance requirement for the carrier and requires the City to be named as 
additionally insured  

 
I am also attaching the proposed Master Pole Agreement that would be executed between the 
City and the carrier for any approved installation. The agreement should be approved with the 
ordinance.  
 
Adopting the ordinance and agreement would prepare the City for working with a carrier to 
build a small cell network(s) in Galena. I recommend you adopt the ordinance and Master Pole 
Agreement.  
 
Please feel free to contact me with any questions. Thank you.   
 

 

Page 17 of 69



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 

SMALL WIRELESS FACILITIES DEPLOYMENT ORDINANCE 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE REGULATION OF AND APPLICATION FOR SMALL WIRELESS 

FACILITIES 

WHEREAS, the Illinois General Assembly has enacted Public Act 100‐0585, known as the Small Wireless 

Facilities Deployment Act (the Act), which became effective June 1, 2018; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Galena (the City) is an Illinois municipality in accordance with the Constitution of 

the State of Illinois of 1970; and 

WHEREAS, the City is authorized, under existing State and federal law, to enact appropriate regulations 

and restrictions relative to small wireless facilities, distributed antenna systems and other personal 

wireless telecommunication facility installations in the public right‐of‐way as long as it does not conflict 

with State and federal law; and 

WHEREAS, the Act sets forth the requirements for the collocation of small wireless facilities by local 

authorities. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the corporate authorities of the City of Galena and incorporated 

into the Galena Code of Ordinances as follows:  

 

SMALL WIRELESS FACILITIES DEPLOYMENT 

§ 97.60 Purpose and Scope.  

(A) Purpose. The purpose of this Ordinance is to establish regulations, standards and procedures for 
the siting and collocation of small wireless facilities on rights‐of‐way within the City’s 

jurisdiction, or outside the rights‐of‐way on property zoned by the City exclusively for 

commercial or industrial use, in a manner that is consistent with the Act.  

(B) Conflicts with Other Ordinances. This Ordinance supersedes all Ordinances or parts of 

Ordinances adopted prior hereto that are in conflict herewith, to the extent of such conflict.  

(C) Conflicts with State and Federal Laws. In the event that applicable federal or State laws or 

regulations conflict with the requirements of this Ordinance, the wireless provider shall comply 

with the requirements of this Ordinance to the maximum extent possible without violating 

federal or State laws or regulations.  

 

§ 97.61 Definitions.  

For the purposes of this Ordinance, the following terms shall have the following meanings:  

Antenna – communications equipment that transmits or receives electromagnetic radio frequency 

signals used in the provision of wireless services. 

Page 18 of 69



2 
 

Applicable codes – uniform building, fire, electrical, plumbing, or mechanical codes adopted by a 

recognized national code organization or local amendments to those codes, including the National 

Electric Safety Code.  

Applicant – any person who submits an application and is a wireless provider. 

Application – a request submitted by an applicant to the City for a permit to collocate small wireless 

facilities, and a request that includes the installation of a new utility pole for such collocation, as well as 

any applicable fee for the review of such application. 

Collocate or collocation – to install, mount, maintain, modify, operate, or replace wireless facilities on or 

adjacent to a wireless support structure or utility pole. 

Communications service – cable service, as defined in 47 U.S.C. 522(6), as amended; information 

service, as defined in 47 U.S.C. 153(24), as amended; telecommunications service, as defined in 47 U.S.C. 

153(53), as amended; mobile service, as defined in 47 U.S.C. 153(53), as amended; or wireless service 

other than mobile service. 

Communications service provider – a cable operator, as defined in 47 U.S.C. 522(5), as amended; a 

provider of information service, as defined in 47 U.S.C. 153(24), as amended; a telecommunications 

carrier, as defined in 47 U.S.C. 153(51), as amended; or a wireless provider. 

FCC – the Federal Communications Commission of the United States. 

Fee – a one‐time charge. 

Historic district or historic landmark – a building, property, or site, or group of buildings, properties, or 

sites that are either (i) listed in the National Register of Historic Places or formally determined eligible 

for listing by the Keeper of the National Register, the individual who has been delegated the authority by 

the federal agency to list properties and determine their eligibility for the National Register, in 

accordance with Section VI.D.1.a.i through Section VI.D.1.a.v of the Nationwide Programmatic 

Agreement codified at 47 CFR Part 1, Appendix C; or (ii) designated as a locally landmarked building, 

property, site, or historic district by an ordinance adopted by the City pursuant to a preservation 

program that meets the requirements of the Certified Local Government Program of the Illinois State 

Historic Preservation Office or where such certification of the preservation program by the Illinois State 

Historic Preservation Office is pending. 

Law – a federal or State statute, common law, code, rule, regulation, order, or local ordinance or 

resolution. 

Micro wireless facility – a small wireless facility that is not larger in dimension than 24 inches in length, 

15 inches in width, and 12 inches in height and that has an exterior antenna, if any, no longer than 11 

inches. 

Municipal utility pole – a utility pole owned or operated by the City in public rights‐of‐way. 

Permit – a written authorization required by the City to perform an action or initiate, continue, or 

complete a project. 

Page 19 of 69



3 
 

Person – an individual, corporation, limited liability company, partnership, association, trust, or other 

entity or organization. 

Public safety agency – the functional division of the federal government, the State, a unit of local 

government, or a special purpose district located in whole or in part within this State, that provides or 

has authority to provide firefighting, police, ambulance, medical, or other emergency services to 

respond to and manage emergency incidents. 

Rate – a recurring charge. 

Right‐of‐way – the area on, below, or above a public roadway, highway, street, public sidewalk, alley, or 

utility easement dedicated for compatible use. Right‐of‐way does not include City‐owned aerial lines. 

Small wireless facility – a wireless facility that meets both of the following qualifications: (i) each 

antenna is located inside an enclosure of no more than 6 cubic feet in volume or, in the case of an 

antenna that has exposed elements, the antenna and all of its exposed elements could fit within an 

imaginary enclosure of no more than 6 cubic feet; and (ii) all other wireless equipment attached directly 

to a utility pole associated with the facility is cumulatively no more than 25 cubic feet in volume. The 

following types of associated ancillary equipment are not included in the calculation of equipment 

volume: electric meter, concealment elements, telecommunications demarcation box, ground‐based 

enclosures, grounding equipment, power transfer switch, cut‐off switch, and vertical cable runs for the 

connection of power and other services. 

Utility pole – a pole or similar structure that is used in whole or in part by a communications service 

provider or for electric distribution, lighting, traffic control, or a similar function. 

Wireless facility – equipment at a fixed location that enables wireless communications between user 

equipment and a communications network, including: (i) equipment associated with wireless 

communications; and (ii) radio transceivers, antennas, coaxial or fiber‐optic cable, regular and backup 

power supplies, and comparable equipment, regardless of technological configuration. Wireless facility 

includes small wireless facilities. Wireless facility does not include: (i) the structure or improvements on, 

under, or within which the equipment is collocated; or (ii) wireline backhaul facilities, coaxial or fiber 

optic cable that is between wireless support structures or utility poles or coaxial, or fiber optic cable that 

is otherwise not immediately adjacent to or directly associated with an antenna. 

Wireless infrastructure provider – any person authorized to provide telecommunications service in the 

State that builds or installs wireless communication transmission equipment, wireless facilities, wireless 

support structures, or utility poles and that is not a wireless services provider but is acting as an agent or 

a contractor for a wireless services provider for the application submitted to the City. 

Wireless provider – a wireless infrastructure provider or a wireless services provider. 

Wireless services – any services provided to the general public, including a particular class of customers, 

and made available on a nondiscriminatory basis using licensed or unlicensed spectrum, whether at a 

fixed location or mobile, provided using wireless facilities. 

Wireless services provider – a person who provides wireless services. 

Page 20 of 69



4 
 

Wireless support structure – a freestanding structure, such as a monopole; tower, either guyed or self‐

supporting; billboard; or other existing or proposed structure designed to support or capable of 

supporting wireless facilities. Wireless support structure does not include a utility pole. 

 

§ 97.62 Regulation of Small Wireless Facilities. 

(A) Permitted Use. Small wireless facilities shall be classified as permitted uses and subject to 

administrative review, except as provided in paragraph (9) regarding Height Exceptions or 

Variances, but not subject to zoning review or approval if they are collocated (i) in rights‐of‐way 

in any zoning district, or (ii) outside rights‐of‐way in property zoned exclusively for commercial 

or industrial use. 

 

(B) Permit Required. An applicant shall obtain one or more permits from the City to collocate a 

small wireless facility. An application shall be received and processed, and permits issued shall 

be subject to the following conditions and requirements: 

(1) Application Requirements. A wireless provider shall provide the following information to the 

City, together with the City’s Small Cell Facilities Permit Application, as a condition of any 

permit application to collocate small wireless facilities on a utility pole or wireless support 

structure: 

(a) Site specific structural integrity and, for a municipal utility pole, make‐ready analysis 

prepared by a structural engineer, as that term is defined in Section 4 of the 

Structural Engineering Practice Act of 1989; 

(b) The location where each proposed small wireless facility or utility pole would be 

installed and photographs of the location and its immediate surroundings depicting 

the utility poles or structures on which each proposed small wireless facility would 

be mounted or location where utility poles or structures would be installed. This 

should include a depiction of the completed facility; 

(c) Specifications and drawings prepared by a structural engineer, as that term is 

defined in Section 4 of the Structural Engineering Practice Act of 1989, for each 

proposed small wireless facility covered by the application as it is proposed to be 

installed;  

(d) The equipment type and model numbers for the antennas and all other wireless 

equipment associated with the small wireless facility;  

(e) A proposed schedule for the installation and completion of each small wireless 

facility covered by the application, if approved; and 

(f) Certification that the collocation complies with the Collocation Requirements and 

Conditions contained herein, to the best of the applicant’s knowledge. 

(g) In the event that the proposed small wireless facility is to be attached to an existing 

pole owned by an entity other than the City, the wireless provider shall provide 

Page 21 of 69



5 
 

legally competent evidence of the consent of the owner of such pole to the 

proposed collocation. 

 

(2) Application Process. The City shall process applications as follows: 
 

(a) The first completed application shall have priority over applications received by 

different applicants for collocation on the same utility pole or wireless support 

structure. 

(b) An application to collocate a small wireless facility on an existing utility pole or 

wireless support structure, or replacement of an existing utility pole or wireless 

support structure shall be processed on a nondiscriminatory basis and shall be 

deemed approved if the City fails to approve or deny the application within 90 days 

after the submission of a completed application. 

However, if an applicant intends to proceed with the permitted activity on a 

deemed approved basis, the applicant shall notify the City in writing of its intention 

to invoke the deemed approved remedy no sooner than 75 days after the 

submission of a completed application. 

The permit shall be deemed approved on the latter of the 90th day after submission 

of the complete application or the 10th day after the receipt of the deemed 

approved notice by the City. The receipt of the deemed approved notice shall not 

preclude the City's denial of the permit request within the time limits as provided 

under this Ordinance. 

(c) An application to collocate a small wireless facility that includes the installation of a 

new utility pole shall be processed on a nondiscriminatory basis and deemed 

approved if the City fails to approve or deny the application within 120 days after 

the submission of a completed application. 

However, if an applicant intends to proceed with the permitted activity on a 

deemed approved basis, the applicant shall notify the City in writing of its intention 

to invoke the deemed approved remedy no sooner than 105 days after the 

submission of a completed application. 

The permit shall be deemed approved on the latter of the 120th day after 

submission of the complete application or the 10th day after the receipt of the 

deemed approved notice by the City. The receipt of the deemed approved notice 

shall not preclude the City's denial of the permit request within the time limits as 

provided under this Ordinance. 

(d) The City shall deny an application which does not meet the requirements of this 

Ordinance. 

If the City determines that applicable codes, ordinances or regulations that concern 

public safety, or the Collocation Requirements and Conditions contained herein 

require that the utility pole or wireless support structure be replaced before the 

Page 22 of 69



6 
 

requested collocation, approval shall be conditioned on the replacement of the 

utility pole or wireless support structure at the cost of the provider. 

The City shall document the basis for a denial, including the specific code provisions 

or application conditions on which the denial is based, and send the documentation 

to the applicant on or before the day the City denies an application.  

The applicant may cure the deficiencies identified by the City and resubmit the 

revised application once within 30 days after notice of denial is sent to the applicant 

without paying an additional application fee. The City shall approve or deny the 

revised application within 30 days after the applicant resubmits the application or it 

is deemed approved. Failure to resubmit the revised application within 30 days of 

denial shall require the application to submit a new application with applicable fees, 

and recommencement of the City’s review period. 

The applicant must notify the City in writing of its intention to proceed with the 

permitted activity on a deemed approved basis, which may be submitted with the 

revised application.  

Any review of a revised application shall be limited to the deficiencies cited in the 

denial. However, this revised application does not apply if the cure requires the 

review of a new location, new or different structure to be collocated upon, new 

antennas, or other wireless equipment associated with the small wireless facility. 

(e) Pole Attachment Agreement. Within 30 days after an approved permit to collocate a 

small wireless facility on a municipal utility pole, the City and the applicant shall 

enter into a Master Pole Attachment Agreement, provided by the City for the initial 

collocation on a municipal utility pole by the application. For subsequent approved 

permits to collocate on a small wireless facility on a municipal utility pole, the City 

and the applicant shall enter into a License Supplement of the Master Pole 

Attachment Agreement. 

 

(3) Completeness of Application. Within 30 days after receiving an application, the City shall 

determine whether the application is complete and notify the applicant. If an application is 

incomplete, the City must specifically identify the missing information. An application shall 

be deemed complete if the City fails to provide notification to the applicant within 30 days 

after all documents, information and fees specifically enumerated in the City's permit 

application form are submitted by the applicant to the City.  

Processing deadlines are tolled from the time the City sends the notice of incompleteness to 

the time the applicant provides the missing information. 

 

(4) Tolling. The time period for applications may be further tolled by: 

(a) An express written agreement by both the applicant and the City; or 

(b) A local, State or federal disaster declaration or similar emergency that causes the 

delay. 

Page 23 of 69



7 
 

 

(5) Consolidated Applications. An applicant seeking to collocate small wireless facilities within 

the jurisdiction of the City shall be allowed, at the applicant's discretion, to file a 

consolidated application and receive a single permit for the collocation of up to 25 small 

wireless facilities if the collocations each involve substantially the same type of small 

wireless facility and substantially the same type of structure. 

If an application includes multiple small wireless facilities, the City may remove small 

wireless facility collocations from the application and treat separately small wireless facility 

collocations for which incomplete information has been provided or that do not qualify for 

consolidated treatment or that are denied. The City may issue separate permits for each 

collocation that is approved in a consolidated application. 

 

(6) Duration of Permits. The duration of a permit shall be for a period of not less than 5 years, 

and the permit shall be renewed for equivalent durations unless the City makes a finding 

that the small wireless facilities or the new or modified utility pole do not comply with the 

applicable City codes or any provision, condition or requirement contained in this 

Ordinance.  

If the Act is repealed as provided in Section 90 therein, renewals of permits shall be subject 

to the applicable City code provisions or regulations in effect at the time of renewal. 

(7) Means of Submitting Applications. Applicants shall submit applications, supporting 

information and notices to the City by personal delivery at the City’s designated place of 

business, by regular mail postmarked on the date due or by any other commonly used 

means, including electronic mail. 

§ 97.63 Collocation Requirements and Conditions.  

(A) Public Safety Space Reservation. The City may reserve space on municipal utility poles for future 

public safety uses, for the City’s electric utility uses, or both, but a reservation of space may not 

preclude the collocation of a small wireless facility unless the City reasonably determines that 

the municipal utility pole cannot accommodate both uses. 

 

(B) Installation and Maintenance. The wireless provider shall install, maintain, repair and modify its 

small wireless facilities in safe condition and good repair and in compliance with the 

requirements and conditions of this Ordinance. The wireless provider shall ensure that its 

employees, agents or contracts that perform work in connection with its small wireless facilities 

are adequately trained and skilled in accordance with all applicable industry and governmental 

standards and regulations. 

 

(C) No interference with public safety communication frequencies. The wireless provider's 

operation of the small wireless facilities shall not interfere with the frequencies used by a public 

safety agency for public safety communications. 

Page 24 of 69



8 
 

A wireless provider shall install small wireless facilities of the type and frequency that will 

not cause unacceptable interference with a public safety agency's communications 

equipment.  

Unacceptable interference will be determined by and measured in accordance with industry 

standards and the FCC's regulations addressing unacceptable interference to public safety 

spectrum or any other spectrum licensed by a public safety agency. 

If a small wireless facility causes such interference, and the wireless provider has been given 

written notice of the interference by the public safety agency, the wireless provider, at its 

own expense, shall remedy the interference in a manner consistent with the abatement and 

resolution procedures for interference with public safety spectrum established by the FCC 

including 47 CFR 22.970 through 47 CFR 22.973 and 47 CFR 90.672 through 47 CFR 90.675. 

The City may terminate a permit for a small wireless facility based on such interference if 

the wireless provider is not in compliance with the Code of Federal Regulations cited in the 

previous paragraph. Failure to remedy the interference as required herein shall constitute a 

public nuisance.  

(D) The wireless provider shall not collocate small wireless facilities on City utility poles that are part 

of an electric distribution or transmission system within the communication worker safety zone 

of the pole or the electric supply zone of the pole.  

However, the antenna and support equipment of the small wireless facility may be located 

in the communications space on the City utility pole and on the top of the pole, if not 

otherwise unavailable, if the wireless provider complies with applicable codes for work 

involving the top of the pole. 

For purposes of this subparagraph, the terms "communications space", "communication 

worker safety zone", and "electric supply zone" have the meanings given to those terms in 

the National Electric Safety Code as published by the Institute of Electrical and Electronics 

Engineers. 

(E) The wireless provider shall comply with all applicable codes and local code provisions or 

regulations that concern public safety. 

(F) The wireless provider shall comply with written design standards that are generally applicable 

for decorative utility poles, or reasonable stealth, concealment and aesthetic requirements that 

are set forth in a City ordinance, written policy adopted by the City, a comprehensive plan or 

other written design plan that applies to other occupiers of the rights‐of‐way, including on a 

historic landmark or in a historic district.  Additionally, all wireless facilities subject to this 

section, including all related equipment and appurtenances, must be a color that blends with 

the surroundings of the pole, structure tower or infrastructure on which it is mounted. The color 

must be comprised of nonreflective materials which blend with the materials and colors of the 

surrounding area and structures. The Applicant shall use good faith efforts to employ reasonable 

stealth techniques to conceal the appearance of the wireless facilities.  

Page 25 of 69



9 
 

(G) Alternate Placements. Except as provided in this Collocation Requirements and Conditions 

Section, a wireless provider shall not be required to collocation small wireless facilities on any 

specific utility pole, or category of utility poles, or be required to collocate multiple antenna 

systems on a single utility pole. However, with respect to an application for the collocation of a 

small wireless facility associated with a new utility pole, the City may propose that the small 

wireless facility be collocated on an existing utility pole or existing wireless support structure 

within 100 feet of the proposed collocation, which the applicant shall accept if it has the right to 

use the alternate structure on reasonable terms and conditions, and the alternate location and 

structure does not impose technical limits or additional material costs as determined by the 

applicant.  

If the applicant refuses a collocation proposed by the City, the applicant shall provide 

written certification describing the property rights, technical limits or material cost reasons 

the alternate location does not satisfy the criteria in this paragraph. 

(H) Height Limitations. The maximum height of a small wireless facility shall be no more than 10 feet 

above the utility pole or wireless support structure on which the small wireless facility is 

collocated.  

New or replacement utility poles or wireless support structures on which small wireless 

facilities are collocated may not exceed the higher of: 

a. 10 feet in height above the tallest existing utility pole, other than a utility pole 

supporting only wireless facilities, that is in place on the date the application is 

submitted to the City, that is located within 300 feet of the new or replacement utility 

pole or wireless support structure and that is in the same right‐of‐way within the 

jurisdictional boundary of the City, provided the City may designate which intersecting 

right‐of‐way within 300 feet of the proposed utility pole or wireless support structures 

shall control the height limitation for such facility; or 

b. 45 feet above ground level. 

 

(I) Height Exceptions or Variances. If an applicant proposes a height for a new or replacement pole 

in excess of the above height limitations on which the small wireless facility is proposed for 

collocation, the applicant shall apply for a variance in writing with the City Engineer in 

conformance with procedures, terms and conditions set forth in §98.21 of the Galena, Illinois 

Code of Ordinances. 

 

(J) Contractual Design Requirements. The wireless provider shall comply with requirements that 

are imposed by a contract between the City and a private property owner that concern design 

or construction standards applicable to utility poles and ground‐mounted equipment located in 

the right‐of‐way. 

 

(K) Ground‐mounted Equipment Spacing. The wireless provider shall comply with applicable spacing 

requirements in applicable codes and ordinances concerning the location of ground‐mounted 

equipment located in the right‐of‐way if the requirements include a waiver, zoning or other 

Page 26 of 69



10 
 

process that addresses wireless provider requests for exception or variance and do not prohibit 

granting of such exceptions or variances. 

(L) Undergrounding Regulations. The wireless provider shall comply with local code provisions or 

regulations concerning undergrounding requirements that prohibit the installation of new or the 

modification of existing utility poles in a right‐of‐way without prior approval if the requirements 

include a waiver, zoning or other process that addresses requests to install such new utility 

poles or modify such existing utility poles and do not prohibit the replacement of utility poles. 

 

(M) Collocation Completion Deadline. Collocation for which a permit is granted shall be completed 

within 180 days after issuance of the permit, unless the City and the wireless provider agree to 

extend this period or a delay is caused by make‐ready work for a municipal utility pole or by the 

lack of commercial power or backhaul availability at the site, provided the wireless provider has 

made a timely request within 60 days after the issuance of the permit for commercial power or 

backhaul services, and the additional time to complete installation does not exceed 360 days 

after issuance of the permit. Otherwise, the permit shall be void unless the City grants an 

extension in writing to the applicant. 

 

§ 97.64 Application Fees.  

        Application fees are imposed as follows: 

(A) Applicant shall pay an application fee of $650 for an application to collocate a single small 

wireless facility on an existing utility pole or wireless support structure, and $350 for each small 

wireless facility addressed in a consolidated application to collocate more than one small 

wireless facility on existing utility poles or wireless support structures. 

 

(B) Applicant shall pay an application fee of $1,000 for each small wireless facility addressed in an 

application that includes the installation of a new utility pole for such collocation. 

 

(C) Notwithstanding any contrary provision of State law or local ordinance, applications pursuant to 
this Section shall be accompanied by the required application fee. Application fees shall be non‐

refundable. 

 

(D) The City shall not require an application, approval or permit, or require any fees or other 

charges, from a communications service provider authorized to occupy the rights‐of‐way, for: 

(1) routine maintenance; 

(2) the replacement of wireless facilities with wireless facilities that are substantially 

similar, the same size, or smaller if the wireless provider notifies the City at least 10 days 

prior to the planned replacement and includes equipment specifications for the 

replacement of equipment consistent with subsection d. under the Section titled 

Application Requirements; or 

(3) the installation, placement, maintenance, operation or replacement of micro wireless 

facilities suspended on cables that are strung between existing utility poles in 

compliance with applicable safety codes. 

Page 27 of 69



11 
 

 

(4) Wireless providers shall secure a permit from the City to work within rights‐of‐way for 

activities that affect traffic patterns or require lane closures. 

§ 97.65 Exceptions to Applicability.  

       Nothing in this Ordinance authorizes a person to collocate small wireless facilities on: 

(A) property owned by a private party or property owned or controlled by the City or another unit 
of local government that is not located within rights‐of‐way, or a privately owned utility pole or 

wireless support structure without the consent of the property owner; 

(B) property owned, leased, or controlled by a park district, forest preserve district, or conservation 
district for public park, recreation or conservation purposes without the consent of the affected 

district, excluding the placement of facilities on rights‐of‐way located in an affected district that 

are under the jurisdiction and control of a different unit of local government as provided by the 

Illinois Highway Code; or  

(C) property owned by a rail carrier registered under Section 18c‐7201 of the Illinois Vehicle Code, 
Metra Commuter Rail or any other public commuter rail service, or an electric utility as defined 

in Section 16‐102 of the Public Utilities Act, without the consent of the rail carrier, public 

commuter rail service, or electric utility. The provisions of this Ordinance do not apply to an 

electric or gas public utility or such utility's wireless facilities if the facilities are being used, 

developed and maintained consistent with the provisions of subsection (i) of Section 16‐108.5 of 

the Public Utilities Act. 

For the purposes of this subsection, "public utility" has the meaning given to that term in 

Section 3‐105 of the Public Utilities Act. Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed to relieve 

any person from any requirement (a) to obtain a franchise or a State‐issued authorization to 

offer cable service or video service or (b) to obtain any required permission to install, place, 

maintain, or operate communications facilities, other than small wireless facilities subject to this 

Ordinance. 

§ 97.66 Pre‐Existing Agreements.  

(A) Existing agreements between the City and wireless providers that relate to the collocation of 

small wireless facilities in the right‐of‐way, including the collocation of small wireless facilities on 

City utility poles, that are in effect on June 1, 2018, remain in effect for all small wireless 

facilities collocated on the City’s utility poles pursuant to applications submitted to the City 

before June 1, 2018, subject to applicable termination provisions contained therein. Agreements 

entered into after the effective date of this ordinance, shall comply with this Ordinance. 

 

(B) A wireless provider that has an existing agreement with the City on the effective date of the Act 

may accept the rates, fees and terms that the City makes available under this Ordinance for the 

collocation of small wireless facilities or the installation of new utility poles for the collocation of 

small wireless facilities that are the subject of an application submitted two or more years after 

the effective date of the Act by notifying the City that it opts to accept such rates, fees and 

Page 28 of 69



12 
 

terms. The existing agreement remains in effect, subject to applicable termination provisions, 

for the small wireless facilities the wireless provider has collocated on the City’s utility poles 

pursuant to applications submitted to the City before the wireless provider provides such notice 

and exercises its option under this paragraph.  

 

§ 97.67 Annual Recurring Rate.  

(A) A wireless provider shall pay to the City an annual recurring rate to collocate a small wireless 

facility on a City utility pole located in a right‐of‐way that equals (i) $200 per year or (ii) the 

actual, direct and reasonable costs related to the wireless provider’s use of space on the City 

utility pole.  

(B) If the City has not billed the wireless provider actual and direct costs, the fee shall be $200 
payable on the first day after the first annual anniversary of the issuance of the permit or notice 

of intent to collocate, and on each annual anniversary date thereafter. 

 

§ 97.68 Abandonment.  

(A) A small wireless facility that is not operated for a continuous period of 12 months shall be 

considered abandoned. The owner of the facility shall remove the small wireless facility within 

90 days after receipt of written notice from the City notifying the wireless provider of the 

abandonment.  

 

(B) The notice shall be sent by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, by the City to 
the owner at the last known address of the wireless provider. If the small wireless facility is not 
removed within 90 days of such notice, the City may remove or cause the removal of such 
facility pursuant to the terms of its pole attachment agreement for municipal utility poles or 
through whatever actions are provided for abatement of nuisances or by other law for removal 
and cost recovery.  

 

(C) A wireless provider shall provide written notice to the City if it sells or transfers small wireless 

facilities within the jurisdiction of the City. Such notice shall include the name and contact 

information of the new wireless provider. 

 

§ 97.69. Dispute Resolution. 

The Circuit Court of Jo Daviess County shall have exclusive jurisdiction to resolve all disputes arising 

under the Small Wireless Facilities Deployment Act. Pending resolution of a dispute concerning rates 

for collocation of small wireless facilities on municipal utility poles within the right‐of‐way, the City 

shall allow the collocating person to collocate on its poles at annual rates of no more than $200 per 

year per municipal utility pole, with rates to be determined upon final resolution of the dispute.  

 

Page 29 of 69



13 
 

§ 97.70. Indemnification. 

A wireless provider shall indemnify and hold the City harmless against any and all liability or loss from 

personal injury or property damage resulting from or arising out of, in whole or in part, the use or 

occupancy of the City improvements or right‐of‐way associated with such improvements by the wireless 

provider or its employees, agents, or contractors arising out of the rights and privileges granted under 

this Ordinance and the Act. A wireless provider has no obligation to indemnify or hold harmless against 

any liabilities and losses as may be due to or caused by the sole negligence of the City or its employees 

or agents. A wireless provider shall further waive any claims that they may have against the City with 

respect to consequential, incidental, or special damages, however caused, based on the theory of 

liability. 

 

§ 97.71. Insurance. 

The wireless provider shall carry, at the wireless provider's own cost and expense, the following 

insurance:  

      (A)  property insurance for its property's replacement cost against all risks;  

      (B) workers' compensation insurance, as required by law; OR  

(C) commercial general liability insurance with respect to its activities on the City improvements or 

rights‐of‐way to afford minimum protection limits consistent with its requirements of other users of 

City improvements or rights‐of‐way, including coverage for bodily injury and property damage. The 

wireless provider shall include the City as an additional insured on the commercial general liability 

policy and provide certification and documentation of inclusion of the City in a commercial general 

liability policy prior to the collocation of any wireless facility. A wireless provider may self‐insure all 

or a portion of the insurance coverage and limit requirement required by the City. A wireless 

provider that self‐insures is not required, to the extent of the self‐insurance, to comply with the 

requirement for the name of additional insureds under this Section. A wireless provider that elects to 

self‐insure shall provide to the City evidence sufficient to demonstrate its financial ability to self‐

insure the insurance coverage limits required by the City. 

 

§ 97.72 Severability. 

If any provision of this Ordinance or application thereof to any person or circumstances is ruled 

unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications 

of this Ordinance that can be given effect without the invalid application or provision, and each 

invalid provision or invalid application of this Ordinance is severable.  

Effective Date.  

This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect on upon adoption by majority vote of the City Council. 

 

   

Page 30 of 69



14 
 

PASSED THIS _______ day of ___________________________________, 2020. 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSTENTIONS: 

ABSENT: 

APPROVED THIS ________ day of _____________________________________, 2020. 

 

___________________________________________ 

Mayor Terry Renner 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________________ 

City Clerk, Mary Beth Hyde 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 31 of 69



City of Galena Master Pole Attachment Agreement      

1 
 

 

MASTER POLE ATTACHMENT AGREEMENT 

This Master Pole Attachment Agreement (Agreement) made this _____day of ____________, 
20__, between the City of Galena, Illinois with its principal offices located at 101 Green Street, Galena, 
Illinois 61036, hereinafter designated LICENSOR and __________________________________________, 
with its principal offices at ________________________________________________, hereinafter 
designated LICENSEE.  LICENSOR and LICENSEE are at times collectively referred to hereinafter as the 
"Parties" or individually as the "Party." 

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS, LICENSOR is the owner, of certain utility poles, wireless support structures, and/or 
real property, which are located within the geographic area of a license to provide wireless services 
licensed by the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) to LICENSEE; and  
 

WHEREAS, LICENSEE desires to install, maintain and operate small wireless facilities in and/or 
upon certain of LICENSOR's utility poles, wireless support structures and/or real property; and 

 
WHEREAS, LINCENSOR and LICENSOR acknowledge that any term used in this Agreement that is 

defined in Section 97.61 of the Small Wireless Facilities Deployment Ordinance (Ordinance No. 
_________, as now or hereafter amended) shall have the meaning provided therein; and 

 
WHEREAS, LICENSOR and LICENSEE acknowledge that the terms of this Agreement are 

nondiscriminatory, competitively neutral and commercially reasonable. 
 
  WHEREAS, LICENSOR and LICENSEE desire to enter into this Agreement to define the general 
terms and conditions which would govern their relationship with respect to particular sites at which 
LICENSOR may wish to permit LICENSEE to install, maintain and operate small wireless facilities as 
hereinafter set forth; and 
 

WHEREAS, the LICENSOR and LICENSEE intend to promote the expansion of communications 
services in a manner consistent with the Small Wireless Facilities Deployment Act, the Illinois Cable and 
Video Competition Act, the Illinois Telephone Company Act, the Telecommunications Act of 1996, the 
Middle Class Tax Relief and Job Creation Act of 2012, the Simplified Municipal Telecommunications Tax 
Act, 35 ILCS 636/5‐1, et. seq. and Federal Communication Commission Regulations; and 
 
  WHEREAS, LICENSOR and LICENSEE acknowledge that they will enter into a License Supplement 
(Supplement), a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, with respect to any particular location or 
site which the Parties agree to license; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Parties acknowledge that different related entities may operate or conduct the 
business of LICENSEE in different geographic areas and as a result, each Supplement may be signed by 
LICENSEE affiliated entities as further described herein, as appropriate based upon the entity holding the 
FCC license in the subject geographic location.  
 
  NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein and intending to 
be legally bound hereby, the Parties hereto agree as follows: 
 

Page 32 of 69



City of Galena Master Pole Attachment Agreement      

2 
 

 
 
1) PREMISES.  Pursuant to all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the applicable 

Supplement, LICENSOR agrees to license to LICENSEE that certain space on or upon LICENSOR's 
utility poles, and/or wireless support structures as more fully described in each Supplement to be 
executed by the Parties hereinafter referred to as the “Premises”,  for the installation, operation, 
maintenance, repair and modification of small wireless facilities; together with the non‐exclusive 
right of ingress and egress from a public right‐of‐way, seven (7) days a week, twenty four (24) hours 
a day, over the Property (as defined below) and to and from the Premises for the purpose of 
installation, operation, maintenance, repair and modification of LICENSEE’s small wireless facilities.  
The LICENSOR’s utility poles, wireless support structures and other poles and towers are hereinafter 
referred to as “Pole” and the entirety of the LICENSOR’s property is hereinafter referred to as 
"Property".  In the event there are not sufficient electric and telephone, cable or fiber utility sources 
located at the Premises or on the Property, LICENSOR agrees to grant LICENSEE the right to install 
such utilities on, over and/or under the Property and to the Premises as necessary for LICENSEE to 
operate its communications facility, but only from duly authorized provider of such utilities, 
provided the location of such utilities shall be designated by LICENSOR.   

2) PERMIT APPLICATION.  For each small wireless facility, LICENSEE shall submit an application to 
LICENSOR for permit that includes: 

a) Site specific structural integrity and, for LICENSOR’S utility pole or wireless support structure, 
make‐ready analysis prepared by a structural engineer, as that term is defined in Section 4 of 
the Structural Engineering Practice Act of 1989; 

b) The location where each proposed small wireless facility or utility pole would be installed and 
photographs of the location and its immediate surroundings depicting the utility poles or 
structures on which each proposed small wireless facility would be mounted or location where 
utility poles or structures would be installed. This should include a depiction of the completed 
facility;  

c) Specifications and drawings prepared by a structural engineer, as that term is defined in Section 
4 of the Structural Engineering Practice Act of 1989, for each proposed small wireless facility 
covered by the application as it is proposed to be installed;  

d) The equipment type and model numbers for the antennas and all other wireless equipment 
associated with the small wireless facility;  

e) A proposed schedule for the installation and completion of each small wireless facility covered 
by the application, if approved; and 

f) Certification that the collocation complies with LICENSOR’s Small Wireless Facilities Ordinance 
requirements, to the best of the applicant’s knowledge. 

g) The application fee due. 

3) APPLICATION FEES. Application fees are subject to the following requirements: 

a) LICENSEE shall pay an application fee of $650 for an application to collocate a single small 
wireless facility on an existing utility pole or wireless support structure and $350 for each small 

Page 33 of 69



City of Galena Master Pole Attachment Agreement      

3 
 

wireless facility addressed in a consolidated application to collocate more than one small 
wireless facility on existing utility poles or wireless support structures. 

b) LICENSEE shall pay an application fee of $1,000 for each small wireless facility addressed in an 

application that includes the installation of a new utility pole for such collocation. 

 

c) Notwithstanding any contrary provision of State law or local ordinance, applications pursuant to 

this Section must be accompanied by the required application fee. 

 

d) LICENSOR shall not require an application, approval, or permit, or require any fees or other 

charges, from LICENSEE, for: 

i) routine maintenance; or 

ii) the replacement of wireless facilities with wireless facilities that are substantially similar, 

including color, the same size, or smaller if LICENSEE notifies LICENSOR at least 10 days prior 

to the planned replacement and includes equipment specifications for the replacement of 

equipment consistent with the requirements of this Agreement; or 

iii) the installation, placement, maintenance, operation, or replacement of small wireless 

facilities that are suspended on cables that are strung between existing utility poles in 

compliance with applicable safety codes, provided this provision does not authorize such 

facilities to be suspended from municipal electric lines, if any.  

LICENSEE shall secure a permit from LICENSOR to work within rights‐of‐way for activities that 
affect traffic patterns or require lane closures. 

4) REQUIREMENTS.  

a) LICENSEE's operation of the small wireless facilities shall not interfere with the frequencies used 
by a public safety agency for public safety communications. LICENSEE shall install small wireless 
facilities of the type and frequency that will not cause unacceptable interference with a public 
safety agency's communications equipment. Unacceptable interference will be determined by 
and measured in accordance with industry standards and the FCC's regulations addressing 
unacceptable interference to public safety spectrum or any other spectrum licensed by a public 
safety agency. If a small wireless facility causes such interference, and LICENSEE has been given 
written notice of the interference by the public safety agency, LICENSEE, at its own expense, 
shall take all reasonable steps necessary to correct and eliminate the interference, including, but 
not limited to, powering down the small wireless facility and later powering up the small 
wireless facility for intermittent testing, if necessary. The LICENSOR may terminate a permit for 
a small wireless facility based on such interference if LICENSEE is not making a good faith effort 
to remedy the problem in a manner consistent with the abatement and resolution procedures 
for interference with public safety spectrum established by the FCC including 47 CFR 22.970 
through 47 CFR 22.973 and 47 CFR 90.672 through 47 CFR 90.675.  

b) LICENSEE shall not install devices on the existing utility pole or wireless support structure that 
extend beyond 10 feet of the poles existing height. 

c) LICENSEE shall install pole mounted equipment at a minimum of eight (8) feet from the ground. 

Page 34 of 69



City of Galena Master Pole Attachment Agreement      

4 
 

d) LICENSEE shall be limited to one (1) cabinet or other ground mounted device for ground 
mounted installations. 

e) LICENSEE shall paint antennas, mounting hardware, and other devices to match or complement 
the structure upon which they are being mounted. 

f) LICENSEE shall install landscaping at the base of poles with respect to any ground equipment 
installed by LICENSEE.  

g) LICENSEE shall comply with all the terms and conditions of LICENSOR’s Small Wireless Facilities 
Deployment Ordinance, as now or hereafter amended, in regard to construction of utility 
facilities. 

h) LICENSEE shall comply with requirements that are imposed by a contract between the LICENSOR 
and a private property owner that concern design or construction standards applicable to utility 
poles and ground‐mounted equipment located in the right‐of‐way. 

i) LICENSEE shall comply with LICENSOR’s Small Wireless Facilities Deployment Ordinance, as now 
or hereafter amended, concerning the location of ground‐mounted equipment located in the 
right‐of‐way.   

j) LICENSEE shall comply LICENSOR’s Small Wireless Facilities Deployment Ordinance, as now or 
hereafter amended, concerning undergrounding requirements or determinations from the 
municipal officer or employee in charge of municipal utilities, in any.   

k) LICENSEE shall comply with LICENSOR’s Small Wireless Facilities Deployment Ordinance, as now 
or hereafter amended, for construction and public safety in the rights‐of‐way, including, but not 
limited to, wiring and cabling requirements, grounding requirements, utility pole extension 
requirements, and signage limitations; and shall comply with reasonable and nondiscriminatory 
requirements that are consistent with PA 100‐0585 and adopted by LICENSOR regulating the 
location, size, surface area and height of small wireless facilities, or the abandonment and 
removal of small wireless facilities. 

l) LICENSEE shall not collocate small wireless facilities within the communication worker safety 
zone of the pole or the electric supply zone of the pole on LICENSOR utility poles that are part of 
an electric distribution or transmission system. However, the antenna and support equipment of 
the small wireless facility may be located in the communications space on the LICENSOR utility 
pole and on the top of the pole, if not otherwise unavailable, if LICENSEE complies with 
LICENSOR’s Small Wireless Facilities Deployment Ordinance, as now or hereafter amended, for 
work involving the top of the pole. For purposes of this subparagraph, the terms 
"communications space", "communication worker safety zone", and "electric supply zone" have 
the meanings given to those terms in the National Electric Safety Code as published by the 
Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers. 

m) LICENSEE shall comply with the LICENSOR’s Small Wireless Facilities Deployment Ordinance, as 
now or hereafter amended, that concern public safety. 

n) LICENSEE shall install, maintain, repair and modify its small wireless facilities in safe condition 
and good repair and in compliance with the requirements and conditions of this Agreement. 
LICENSEE shall ensure that its employees, agents or contractors that perform work in connection 

Page 35 of 69



City of Galena Master Pole Attachment Agreement      

5 
 

with its small wireless facilities are adequately trained and skilled in accordance with all 
applicable industry and governmental standards and regulations. 

o) LICENSEE shall comply with recommendations from the Galena Historic Preservation 
Commission for decorative utility poles, or stealth, concealment, and aesthetic requirements 
that are identified by LICENSOR.  The wireless provider will comply with written design 
standards that are generally applicable for decorative utility poles, or reasonable stealth, 
concealment, and aesthetic requirements that are identified by the authority in an ordinance, 
written policy adopted by the governing board of authority, a comprehensive plan, or other 
written design plan that applies to other occupiers of the right‐of‐way including on a historic 
landmark or in a historic district subject to subsection (c) of Section 15 of the code except for 
facilities excluded from evaluation for effects on historic properties under 47 CFR 1.1307(a)(4), 
as now or hereafter amended] adopted by LICENSOR, LICENSOR’s comprehensive plan dated 
April, 2014, or other written design plan that applies to other occupiers of the rights‐of‐way, 
including on a historic landmark or in a historic district.    

 

5) APPLICATION PROCESS. LICENSOR shall process applications as follows: 

a) An application to collocate a small wireless facility on an existing utility pole, replacement of an 

existing utility pole or wireless support structure owned or controlled by LICENSOR shall be 

processed by LICENSOR and deemed approved if LICENSOR fails to approve or deny the 

application within 90 days. However, if LICENSEE intends to proceed with the permitted activity 

on a deemed approved basis, LICENSEE must notify LICENSOR in writing of its intention to 

invoke the deemed approved remedy no sooner than 75 days after the submission of a 

completed application. The permit shall be deemed approved on the latter of the 90th day after 

submission of the complete application or the 10th day after the receipt of the deemed 

approved notice by LICENSOR. The receipt of the deemed approved notice shall not preclude 

LICENSOR's denial of the permit request within the time limits as provided under the Small 

Wireless Facilities Deployment Ordinance, as now or hereafter amended. 

 

b) An application to collocate a small wireless facility that includes the installation of a new utility 

pole shall be processed and deemed approved if LICENSOR fails to approve or deny the 

application within 120 days. However, if LICENSEE applicant intends to proceed with the 

permitted activity on a deemed approved basis, the applicant must notify LICENSOR in writing of 

its intention to invoke the deemed approved remedy no sooner than 105 days after the 

submission of a completed application. The permit shall be deemed approved on the latter of 

the 120th day after submission of the complete application or the 10th day after the receipt of 

the deemed approved notice by LICENSOR. The receipt of the deemed approved notice shall not 

preclude LICENSOR's denial of the permit request within the time limits as provided under the 

Small Wireless Facilities Deployment Ordinance, as now or hereafter amended. 

 

c) LICENSOR shall approve an application unless the application does not meet the requirements of 

the Small Wireless Facilities Deployment Ordinance, as now or hereafter amended. 

  

d) If LICENSOR determines that applicable codes, local code provisions or regulations that concern 

public safety, or the Requirements of the Small Wireless Facilities Deployment Ordinance, as 

now or hereafter amended, require that the utility pole or wireless support structure be 

Page 36 of 69



City of Galena Master Pole Attachment Agreement      

6 
 

replaced before the requested collocation, approval may be conditioned on the replacement of 

the utility pole or wireless support structure at the cost of LICENSEE. LICENSOR must document 

the basis for a denial, including the specific code provisions or application conditions on which 

the denial was based, and send the documentation to LICENSEE on or before the day LICENSOR 

denies an application. LICENSEE may cure the deficiencies identified by LICENSOR and resubmit 

the revised application once within 30 days after notice of denial is sent to the applicant without 

paying an additional application fee. LICENSOR shall approve or deny the revised application 

within 30 days after LICENSEE resubmits the application or it is deemed approved. However, 

LICENSEE must notify LICENSOR in writing of its intention to proceed with the permitted activity 

on a deemed approved basis, which may be submitted with the resubmitted application.  Any 

subsequent review shall be limited to the deficiencies cited in the denial. However, this revised 

application cure does not apply if the cure requires the review of a new location, new or 

different structure to be collocated upon, new antennas, or other wireless equipment 

associated with the small wireless facility. 

 

e) COMPLETENESS OF APPLICATION. Within 30 days after receiving an application, the LICENSOR 

shall determine whether the application is complete and notify the applicant. If an application is 

incomplete, the LICENSOR shall specifically identify the missing information. An application shall 

be deemed complete if the LICENSOR fails to provide notification to the applicant with 30 days 

after all documents, information and fees specifically enumerated in the LICENSOR’s permit 

application form are submitted by the application to the LICENSOR. Processing deadlines are 

tolled from the time the LICENSOR sends the notice of incompleteness to the time the applicant 

provides the missing information. 

f) TOLLING. The time period for applications may be further tolled by the express agreement in 

writing by both LICENSOR and LICENSEE; or a local, State or federal disaster declaration or 

similar emergency that causes the delay. 

g) CONSOLIDATED APPLICATIONS. A LICENSEE seeking to collocate small wireless facilities within 

the jurisdiction of LICENSOR shall be allowed, at LICENSEE's discretion, to file a consolidated 

application and receive a single permit for the collocation of up to 25 small wireless facilities if 

the collocations each involve substantially the same type of small wireless facility and 

substantially the same type of structure. If an application includes multiple small wireless 

facilities, LICENSOR may remove small wireless facility collocations from the application and 

treat separately small wireless facility collocations for which incomplete information has been 

provided or that do not qualify for consolidated treatment or that are denied. LICENSOR may 

issue separate permits for each collocation that is approved in a consolidated application. 

 

6) COLLOCATION COMPLETION DEADLINE. Collocation for which a permit is granted shall be completed 

within 180 days after issuance of the permit, unless LICENSOR and LICENSEE agree to extend this 

period or a delay is caused by make‐ready work for a LICENSOR utility pole or by the lack of 

commercial power or backhaul availability at the site, provided LICENSEE has made a timely request 

within 60 days after the issuance of the permit for commercial power or backhaul services, and the 

additional time to complete installation does not exceed 360 days after issuance of the permit. 

Otherwise, the permit shall be void unless LICENSOR grants an extension in writing to the LICENSEE. 

 

Page 37 of 69



City of Galena Master Pole Attachment Agreement      

7 
 

7) DURATION OF PERMITS AND SUPPLEMENTS. The duration of a permit and the initial Supplement 

shall be for a period of (not less than 5 years), and the permit and Supplement shall be renewed for 

equivalent durations unless LICENSOR makes a finding that the small wireless facilities or the new or 

modified utility pole do not comply with the applicable codes or local code provisions or regulations 

in the Small Wireless Facilities Deployment Ordinance, as now or hereafter amended.  If P.A. 100‐

0585 is repealed as provided in Section 90 of the Act, renewals of permits shall be subject to the 

LICENSOR’s code provisions or regulations in effect at the time of renewal. 

 

8) EXTENSIONS.  Each Supplement may be extended for additional five (5) year terms unless LICENSEE 

terminates it at the end of the then current term by giving LICENSOR written notice of the intent to 

terminate at least three (3) months prior to the end of the then current term. The initial term and all 

extensions under a Supplement shall be collectively referred to herein as the "Term".  

Notwithstanding anything herein, after the expiration of this Agreement, its terms and conditions 

shall survive and govern with respect to any remaining Supplements in effect until their expiration 

or termination.  

 

9) RENTAL. Each Supplement shall be effective as of the date of execution by both Parties (the 

"Effective Date"), provided, however, the initial term of each Supplement shall be for five (5) years 

and shall commence on the first day of the month following the day that LICENSEE commences 

installation of the equipment on the Premises (the “Commencement Date”) at which time rental 

payments shall commence and be due at a total annual rental as set forth in the Supplement, to be 

paid in advance annually on the Commencement Date and on each anniversary of it in advance, to 

the LICENSOR in the Supplement (unless LESSOR otherwise designates another payee and provides 

notice to LICENSEE).  LICENSOR and LICENSEE acknowledge and agree that the initial rental payment 

for each Supplement shall not actually be sent by LICENSEE until thirty (30) days after the 

Commencement Date. LICENSOR and LICENSEE agree that they shall acknowledge in writing the 

Commencement Date of each Supplement.  Rental for the use of any poles pursuant to this 

Agreement, shall be an annual fee of $200.00 per each wireless facility which LICENSEE attaches to 

LICENSOR’s pole.   Thereafter, rent will be due at each annual anniversary of the “Commencement 

Date” of the applicable Supplement. Upon agreement of the Parties, LICENSEE may pay rent by 

electronic funds transfer and in such event, LICENSOR agrees to provide to LICENSEE bank routing 

information for such purpose upon request of LICENSEE. 

 

10)  ABANDONMENT. A small wireless facility that is not operated for a continuous period of 12 months 

shall be considered abandoned and the LICENSEE must remove the small wireless facility within 90 

days after receipt of written notice from LICENSOR notifying LICENSEE of the abandonment.  

The notice shall be sent by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, by LICENSOR to the 

LICENSEE at the last known address of LICENSEE. If the small wireless facility is not removed within 

90 days of such notice, LICENSOR may remove or cause the removal of such facility and charge said 

costs to the LICENSEE.  

LICENSEE shall provide written notice to LICENSOR of any sale or transfer of small wireless facilities 

not less than 30 days prior to such transfer and said notice shall include the name and contact 

information of the new wireless provider. 

 

Page 38 of 69



City of Galena Master Pole Attachment Agreement      

8 
 

11) CONDITION OF PREMISES. Where the Premises incudes one or more Poles, LICENSOR covenants that 

it will keep the Poles in good repair as required by all federal, state, county and local laws. If the 

LICENSOR fails to make such repairs including maintenance within 60 days, of any notification to 

LICENSOR, the LICENSEE shall have the right to cease annual rental for the effected poles, but only if 

the poles are no longer capable of being used for the purpose originally contemplated in this 

Agreement or otherwise do not comply with existing law. If LICENSEE terminates, LICENSEE shall 

remove its small wireless facility. Termination of this Agreement shall be the LICENSEE’s sole 

remedy. 

 

12) MAKE READY TERMS. LICENSOR shall not require more make‐ready work than required to meet 

applicable codes or industry standards. Make‐ready work may include work needed to 

accommodate additional public safety communications needs that are identified in a documented 

and approved plan for the deployment of public safety equipment as specified and included in an 

existing or preliminary LICENSOR or public service agency plan. Fees for make‐ready work, including 

any LICENSOR utility pole attachment, shall not exceed actual costs or the amount charged to 

communications service providers for similar work and shall not include any consultants’ fees or 

expenses for LICENSOR utility poles that do not support aerial facilities used to provide 

communications services or electric service. Make‐ready work, including any pole replacement, shall 

be completed within 60 days of written acceptance of the good‐faith estimate by the LICENSOR at 

the LICENSEE’s sole cost and expense. 

 

13) AERIAL FACILITIES. For LICENSOR utility poles that support aerial facilities used to provide 
communications services or electric services, LICENSEE shall comply with the process for make‐ready 

work under 47 U.S.C. 224 and its implementing regulations. LICENSOR shall follow a substantially 

similar process for such make‐ready work except to the extent that the timing requirements are 

otherwise addressed in the Small Wireless Facilities Deployment Ordinance, as now or hereafter 

amended. The good‐faith estimate of the person owning or controlling LICENSOR’s utility pole for 

any make‐ready work necessary to enable the pole to support the requested collocation shall 

include LICENSOR utility pole replacement, if necessary. Make‐ready work for utility poles that 

support aerial facilities used to provide communications services or electric services may include 

reasonable consultants’ fees and expenses. 

 

14) NO AERIAL FACILITIES. For LICENSOR utility poles that do not support aerial facilities used to provide 
communications services or electric services, LICENSOR shall provide a good‐faith estimate for any 

make‐ready work necessary to enable the LICENSOR utility pole to support the requested 

collocation, include pole replacement, if necessary, within 90 days after receipt of a complete 

application. Make‐ready work, including any LICENSOR utility pole replacement, shall be completed 

within 60 days of written acceptance of the good‐faith estimate by LICENSEE at LICENSEE’s sole cost 

and expense. Alternatively, if LICENSOR determines that applicable codes or public safety 

regulations require the LICENSOR’s utility pole to be replaced to support the requested collocation, 

LICENSOR may require LICENSEE to replace LICENSOR’s utility pole at LICENSEE’s sole cost and 

expense. 

 

15) GENERAL RESTRICTIONS.  In the event LICENSOR, in its reasonable discretion deems it necessary to 

remove, relocate or replace a Pole, LICENSOR shall notify LICENSEE at least one hundred eighty (180) 

days prior of the need to remove or relocate its small wireless facility. In such event, LICENSOR shall 

Page 39 of 69



City of Galena Master Pole Attachment Agreement      

9 
 

provide options for alternative locations for LICENSEE relocation of equipment which shall be in a 

mutually agreeable location (“Alternative Premises”). LICENSEE shall be solely responsible for all 

costs related to the relocation of its small wireless facility to the Alternative Premises. In the event 

that a suitable Alternative Premises cannot be identified, LICENSEE may terminate the applicable 

Supplement. In the event of an emergency, which for purposes of this Agreement shall be 

considered any imminent threat to health, safety and welfare of the public, LICENSOR must provide 

as much notice as reasonably practical under the circumstances. LICENSEE may terminate this 

Agreement by giving written notice to the other party specifying the date of termination, such 

notice to be given not less than one hundred eighty (180) days prior to the date specified therein. 

 

16) ELECTRICAL. LICENSEE shall be permitted to connect its equipment to necessary electrical and 

telephone service, at LICENSEE’s expense.  LICENSEE shall attempt to coordinate with utility 

companies to provide separate service to LICENSEE’s equipment for LICENSEE use.  In the event that 

LICENSEE can obtain separate electrical service with a separate meter measuring usage, the 

LICENSEE shall pay the utility directly for its power consumption, if billed directly by the utility.   In 

the event that separate electrical service is not possible or practical under the circumstances, 

LICENSEE may use existing service, at LICENSEE’s expense, upon the reasonable approval of 

LICENSOR.   In the event that LICENSEE uses existing utility service at an individual Premises, the 

Parties agree to either: (i) attempt to have a sub‐meter installed, at LICENSEE’s expense, which shall 

monitor LICENSEE’s utility usage (with a reading and subsequent bill for usage delivered to LICENSEE 

by either the applicable utility company or LICENSOR); or (ii) provide for an additional fee in the 

applicable Supplement which shall cover LICENSEE’s utility usage.  The Parties agree to reflect power 

usage and measurement issues in each applicable Supplement.  

 

17) TEMPORARY POWER. LICENSEE shall be permitted at any time during the Term of each Supplement, 

to install, maintain and/or provide access to and use of, as necessary (during any power interruption 

at the Premises), a temporary power source, and all related equipment and appurtenances within 

the Premises, or elsewhere on the Property in such locations as reasonably approved by LICENSOR.  

LICENSEE shall be permitted to connect the temporary power source to its equipment on the 

Premises in areas and manner approved by LICENSOR. 

 

18) USE; GOVERNMENTAL APPROVALS.  LICENSEE shall use the Premises for the purpose of 

constructing, maintaining, repairing and operating small wireless facilities and uses incidental 

thereto.  LICENSEE shall have the right to replace, repair and modify equipment, antennas and/or 

conduits or any portion thereof and the frequencies over which the equipment operates, in 

conformance with the original Supplement. It is understood and agreed that LICENSEE's ability to 

use the Premises is contingent upon its obtaining after the execution date of each Supplement all of 

the certificates, permits and other approvals (collectively the "Governmental Approvals") that may 

be required by any Federal, State or Local authorities as well as a satisfactory building structural 

analysis which will permit LICENSEE use of the Premises as set forth above.  In the event that (i) any 

of such applications for such Governmental Approvals should be finally rejected; (ii) any 

Governmental Approval issued to LICENSEE is canceled, expires, lapses, or is otherwise withdrawn or 

terminated by governmental authority; and (iii) LICENSEE determines that such Governmental 

Approvals may not be obtained in a timely manner, LICENSEE shall have the right to terminate the 

applicable Supplement.  Notice of LICENSEE's exercise of its right to terminate shall be given to 

LICENSOR in accordance with the notice provisions set forth in Paragraph 23 and shall be effective 

Page 40 of 69



City of Galena Master Pole Attachment Agreement      

10 
 

upon the mailing of such notice by LICENSEE, or upon such later date as designated by LICENSEE.  All 

rentals paid to said termination date shall be retained by LICENSOR.  Upon such termination, the 

applicable Supplement shall be of no further force or effect except to the extent of the 

representations, warranties and indemnities made by each Party to the other thereunder.  

Otherwise, the LICENSEE shall have no further obligations for the payment of rent to LICENSOR for 

the terminated Supplement.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Paragraph, LICENSEE 

shall continue to be liable for all rental payments to the LICENSOR until all equipment is removed 

from the Property. 

 

19) INSURANCE.  LICENSEE shall carry, at LICENSEE's own cost and expense, the following insurance: (i) 
property insurance for its property's replacement cost against all risks; (ii) workers' compensation 

insurance, as required by law; or (iii) commercial general liability insurance with respect to its 

activities on LICENSOR improvements or rights‐of‐way, limits not less than $1,000,000.00 for bodily 

injury and property damage. LICENSEE shall include LICENSOR as an additional insured on the 

commercial general liability policy and provide certification and documentation of inclusion of 

LICENSOR in a commercial general liability policy.  
  

20) INDEMNIFICATION. LICENSEE shall indemnify and hold LICENSOR harmless against any and all 

liability or loss from personal injury or property damage resulting from or arising out of, in whole or 

in part, the use or occupancy of LICENSOR’s improvements or right‐of‐way associated with such 

improvements by LICENSEE or its employees, agents, or contractors arising out of the rights and 

privileges granted under this Agreement and PA 100‐0585. LICENSEE has no obligation to indemnify 

or hold harmless against any liabilities and losses as may be due to or caused by the sole negligence 

of LICENSOR or its employees or agents. LICENSEE hereby further waives any claims that LICENSEE 

may have against the LICENSOR with respect to consequential, incidental, or special damages, 

however caused, based on the theory of liability. 

 

21) REMOVAL AT END OF TERM.  LICENSEE shall, upon expiration of the Term, or within ninety (90) days 

after any earlier termination of a Supplement, remove its equipment, conduits, fixtures and all 

personal property and restore the Premises to its original condition, reasonable wear and tear and 

casualty damage not caused by LICENSEE excepted.  LICENSOR agrees and acknowledges that all of 

the equipment, conduits, fixtures and personal property of LICENSEE shall remain the personal 

property of LICENSEE and LICENSEE shall have the right to remove the same at any time during the 

Term, whether or not said items are considered fixtures and attachments to real property under 

applicable laws.  If such time for removal causes LICENSEE to remain on the Premises after 

termination of the Supplement, LICENSEE shall pay rent at the then existing monthly rate or on the 

existing monthly pro‐rata basis if based upon a longer payment term, until such time as the removal 

of the antenna structure, fixtures and all personal property are completed. 

 

22) RIGHTS UPON SALE.  Should LICENSOR, at any time during the Term of any Supplement decide to 

sell or transfer all or any part of the Property such sale or grant of an easement or interest therein 

shall be under and subject to the Supplement and any such purchaser or transferee shall recognize 

LICENSEE's rights hereunder and under the terms of the Supplement.  

 

23) NOTICES.  All notices hereunder must be in writing and shall be deemed validly given if sent by 

certified mail, return receipt requested or by commercial courier, provided the courier's regular 

Page 41 of 69



City of Galena Master Pole Attachment Agreement      

11 
 

business is delivery service and provided further that it guarantees delivery to the addressee by the 

end of the next business day following the courier's receipt from the sender, addressed as follows 

(or any other address that the Party to be notified may have designated to the sender by like 

notice): 

LICENSOR:   
City of Galena, Illinois 
Attn: City Engineer 
101 Green Street 
Galena, IL 61036 
 
Copy to: 
City Attorney 
101 Green Street 
Galena, IL 61036 
 
LICENSEE:   
 
Name 
Company 
Address 
City, State Zip 
 
Copy to: 
Name 
Company 
Address 
City, State Zip 

 

Either Party may change the addressee and/or location for the giving of notice to it by providing 
a thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the other Party. 

Notice shall be effective upon actual receipt or refusal as shown on the receipt obtained 
pursuant to the foregoing. 

24) CASUALTY.  In the event of damage by fire or other casualty to the Pole or Premises that cannot 

reasonably be expected to be repaired within forty‐five (45) days following same or, if the Pole or 

Property is damaged by fire or other casualty so that such damage may reasonably be expected to 

disrupt LICENSEE's operations at the Premises for more than forty‐five (45) days, then LICENSEE 

may, at any time following such fire or other casualty, provided LICENSOR has not completed the 

restoration required to permit LICENSEE to resume its operation at the Premises, terminate the 

Supplement upon fifteen (15) days prior written notice to LICENSOR.  Any such notice of termination 

shall cause the Supplement to expire with the same force and effect as though the date set forth in 

such notice were the date originally set as the expiration date of the Supplement and the Parties 

shall make an appropriate adjustment, as of such termination date, with respect to payments due to 

the other under the Supplement.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the rent shall abate during the 

period of repair following such fire or other casualty in proportion to the degree to which LICENSEE’s 

use of the Premises is impaired. 

Page 42 of 69



City of Galena Master Pole Attachment Agreement      

12 
 

25) DEFAULT. In the event there is a breach by a Party with respect to any of the provisions of this 
Agreement or its obligations under it, the non‐breaching Party shall give the breaching Party written 

notice of such breach. After receipt of such written notice, the breaching Party shall have 30 days in 

which to cure any breach, provided the breaching Party shall have such extended period, not to 

exceed 90 days, as may be required beyond the 30 days if the breaching Party commences the cure 

within the 30‐day period and thereafter continuously and diligently pursues to cure to completion. 

The non‐breaching Party may maintain any action or affect any remedies for default against the 

breaching Party subsequent to the 30‐day cure period, as potentially extended to 90 days based on 

circumstances. 

 

26) REMEDIES. In the event of a default by either Party with respect to a material provision of this 

Agreement, without limiting, other than by the specific terms of this Agreement, the non‐defaulting 

Party in the exercise of any right or remedy which the non‐defaulting Party may have by reason of 

such default, the non‐defaulting Party may terminate the applicable Supplement and/or pursue any 

remedy now or hereafter available to the non‐defaulting Party under the Laws or judicial decisions 

of the state of Illinois. Further, upon a default, the non‐defaulting Party may at its option (but 

without obligation to do so), perform the defaulting Party’s duty or obligation on the defaulting 

Party’s behalf, including but not limited to the obtaining of reasonably required insurance policies. 

The costs and expenses of such performance by the non‐defaulting Party shall be due and payable 

by the defaulting Party upon invoice therefor.  

 

27) APPLICABLE LAWS.  During the Term, LICENSOR shall maintain the Property and the Pole in 

compliance with all applicable laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, directives, covenants, easements, 

zoning and land use regulations, and restrictions of record, permits, building codes, (collectively 

“Laws”).  LICENSEE shall, in respect to the condition of the Premises and at LICENSEE’s sole cost and 

expense, comply with (a) all Laws relating solely to LICENSEE’s specific and unique nature of use of 

the Premises; and (b) all building codes requiring modifications to the Premises due to the 

improvements being made by LICENSEE in the Premises.  It shall be LICENSOR’s obligation to comply 

with all Laws relating to the Pole in general, without regard to specific use (including, without 

limitation, modifications required to enable LICENSEE to obtain all necessary building permits). 

 

28) BOND.  LICENSEE shall deposit with LICENSOR on one occasion prior to the commencement of the 

first Supplement a bond in a form reasonably acceptable to LICENSOR in the amount of $10,000 per 

small wireless facility to guarantee the safe and efficient removal of any equipment from any 

Premises subject to this Agreement, which equipment remains more than 30 days after rental 

payment has ceased and Licensee has failed to remove the equipment.  The funds may also be used 

to restore the premises to original condition, if LICENSEE fails to do so. 

 

29) MISCELLANEOUS.  This Agreement and the Supplements that may be executed from time to time 

hereunder contain all agreements, promises and understandings between the LICENSOR and the 

LICENSEE regarding this transaction, and no oral agreement, promises or understandings shall be 

binding upon either the LICENSOR or the LICENSEE in any dispute, controversy or proceeding.  This 

Agreement may not be amended or varied except in a writing signed by all Parties.  This Agreement 

shall extend to and bind the heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns hereto.  The 

failure of either party to insist upon strict performance of any of the terms or conditions of this 

Agreement or to exercise any of its rights hereunder shall not waive such rights and such party shall 

Page 43 of 69



City of Galena Master Pole Attachment Agreement      

13 
 

have the right to enforce such rights at any time.  The performance of this Agreement via each 

Supplement shall be governed interpreted, construed and regulated by the laws of the state of 

Illinois. 

 

30) EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement and any Supplements may be executed in multiple 

counterparts, including by counterpart facsimiles or scanned email counterpart signature, each of 

which shall be deemed an original, and all such counterparts once assembled together shall 

constitute one integrated instrument. 

 

31) AUTHORIZATION.  LICENSEE certifies and warrants that it has the authority to enter into this 
Agreement.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have set their hands and affixed their respective seals 
the day and year first above written. 

 

LICENSOR: 

The CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS, an Illinois Municipal Corporation 

 

BY: 

Name: _____________________________ 

Title: ______________________________ 

Date:_______________________________ 
 

 

LICENSEE: 

BY: 

Name: _____________________________ 

Title: ______________________________  

Date:           

Page 44 of 69



City of Galena Master Pole Attachment Agreement      

14 
 

EXHIBIT "A" 

LICENSE SUPPLEMENT 

  This License Supplement (Supplement), is made this ____ day of _______, _______, between 
City of Galena, Illinois, whose principal place of business is 101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois (LICENSOR), 
and ______________________________, whose principal place of business is 
______________________________________________ (LICENSEE). 

 

1.   Master License Agreement.  This Supplement is a Supplement as referenced in that certain 
Master License Agreement between the City of Galena and _________________________________, 
dated ________ ____, 20___, (the Agreement).  All of the terms and conditions of the Agreement are 
incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof without the necessity of repeating or 
attaching the Agreement.  In the event of a contradiction, modification or inconsistency between the 
terms of the Agreement and this Supplement, the terms of this Supplement (note – Supplement should 
govern because there may be some site specific items that might have to be addressed at an individual 
location which might create a conflict with Agreement terms) shall govern.  Capitalized terms used in 
this Supplement shall have the same meaning described for them in the Agreement unless otherwise 
indicated herein. 

 

2.   Premises.  The Property owned by Licensor is located at 
___________________________________.  The Premises licensed by the LICENSOR to the LICENSEE 
hereunder is described on Exhibit “1” attached hereto and made a part hereof.   

3.   Term. The Commencement Date and the Term of this Supplement shall be as set forth in 
Paragraph 7 of the Agreement.  

4.  Consideration.  Rent under this Supplement shall be $200.00 per year, payable to LICENSOR at 
101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036.  Thereafter, rent will be due at each annual anniversary of the 
“Commencement Date” of this Supplement. LESSEE shall obtain electrical service and provide for a 
separate meter and billing from the applicable utility provider.   
 
5.  Site Specific Terms. (Include any site‐specific terms) 
 
 

Page 45 of 69



City of Galena Master Pole Attachment Agreement      

15 
 

  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have set their hands and affixed their respective seal 
the day and year first above written. 
 
 

LICENSOR 

CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS, an Illinois Municipal Corporation 
             

BY: 

Name: __________________________ 

Title: ___________________________ 

Date:         ________ 

 

 

 

 

LICENSEE 

 

BY: 

Name: __________________________ 

Title: ___________________________ 

Date:         ________ 

 

   

Page 46 of 69



City of Galena Master Pole Attachment Agreement      

16 
 

EXHIBIT 1 

Premises 

(see attached site plans) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 47 of 69



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

Memorandum 
 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 
 
FROM:    Jonathan Miller, Building Official     
 
DATE:    September 9, 2020                             
 
RE:     City of Galena Historic Ordinance Amendment.   
 
It was recently noticed that the City of Galena National Historic District boundaries that are outlined on the Galena 
Zoning Map were not accurately described in the Code of Ordinances.  The current Historic District boundaries 
were adopted by the City Council in 2012, but the Code of Ordinances was never amended to accurately describe 
the boundaries.  The following two changes are proposed to better represent our Historic District in our Code of 
Ordinances.  We look to replace the current two sections with the underlined sections.   
 

Revisions to City of Galena Code of Ordinances Section 151.01(A) Designated Areas; Map 
 
(A) All areas, places, buildings, structures, works of art and other objects individually and collectively, whether 

owned or controlled privately or by any public body located within that part of the city commonly described 
as the “original city” and recorded as the city limits in the Courthouse of Jo Daviess County, State of Illinois, on 
March 28, 1838, and all subdivisions added to the city prior to December 31, 1859, are hereby designated as 
areas, places, buildings, structures, works of art or other objects having a special historical, architectural, 
community or aesthetic interest and value. 

(B) All areas, places, buildings, structures, works of art and other objects individually and collectively, whether 
owner or controlled privately or by any public body located within the part of the city designated on the 

official City of Galena Zoning map labeled as “Historic District” are hereby designated as areas, places, 

buildings, structures, works of art or other objects having a special historical, architectural, community or 

aesthetic interest and value.  This includes individually landmarked properties as outlined in Chapter 151. 

 

Revisions to City of Galena Code of Ordinances Section 151.20(A) Historic District Boundaries 
 

(A) The boundaries of the National Historic District (NHD) include that part of the city commonly described as 
the “original city” and recorded as the city limits in the courthouse of Jo Daviess County, State of Illinois, on 
March 28, 1838, and all subdivisions added to the city prior to December 31, 1859 as more particularly 
indicated on the Map of Galena Historic District and depicted on the Official Zoning Map 

  
(A) The boundaries of the National Historic District (NHD) shall include the part of the city designated on the 

official City of Galena Zoning map labeled as “Historic District.”  This includes individually landmarked 
properties as outlined in Chapter 151. 

Page 48 of 69



 
 

Ordinance #20‐______ 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 151, “HISTORIC PRESERVATION” OF THE CODE 

OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF GALENA 

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 151 of the Galena Code of Ordinances regulates Historic 

Preservation; and  
 
WHEREAS, Chapter 151.01 of the Galena Code of Ordinances designates the 

areas of the City of Galena having special historical, architectural, community or 
aesthetic interest and value as the Galena National Historic District; and 

 
  WHEREAS, Chapter 151.20 of the Galena Code of Ordinances describes the 
Galena National Historic District and its subdistrict boundaries; and   
 
  WHEREAS, The Mayor and City Council seek to align Chapter 151.01 and 151.02 
with the previously adopted National Historic District Boundaries as depicted on the 
officially adopted Zoning Map of the City of Galena.    

 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Galena, Jo 

Daviess County, Illinois, as follows: 
 
SECTION I: Chapter 151.01 (A), “Designated Area; Map”, is hereby amended as 

follows: 
 

(A) All areas, places, buildings, structures, works of art and other objects 

individually and collectively, whether owner or controlled privately or by any 

public body located within the part of the city designated on the official City of 

Galena Zoning map labeled as “Historic District” are hereby designated as 

areas, places, buildings, structures, works of art or other objects having a 

special historical, architectural, community or aesthetic interest and value.  

This includes individually landmarked properties as outlined in Chapter 151. 

 
    SECTION II:  Chapter 151.20 (A), “Historic District and Subdistrict Boundaries”, is 
hereby amended as follows: 
 

(A) The boundaries of the National Historic District (NHD) shall include the part of 
the city designated on the official City of Galena Zoning map labeled as 
“Historic District.”  This includes individually landmarked properties as outlined 
in Chapter 151. 
 

Page 49 of 69



               SECTION III:  Passed on this _______day of _________________, 2020, in open 
Council session. 
             
 
      AYES:           NAYS:   
            
             
 
__________________________________ 
TERRY RENNER, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
MARY BETH HYDE, CITY CLERK 

Page 50 of 69



City of Galena 
East Side Utility Improvements Project 

Funding Status Summary – September 2020 
 
 
 

The City of Galena is requesting IEPA (Illinois Environmental Protection Agency) Loan funds for the 
East Side Utility Improvement Project. 
 
IEPA Loan Funds are being requested for: 

o Louie’s Trenching – Pay Application #1 for $306,377.24 
o Construction Engineering Invoices from IIW (#74378 & #74510) for $17,727.43 

Total IEPA Loan Disbursement #2 Request = $324,104.67 
 
 
As noted in the IEPA Loan Agreement, the project includes ineligible loan items for the sanitary 
sewer work.  City funds are to pay the ineligible loan items.   For pay application #1, there is 4.2% of 
ineligible work that was completed; this percentage was applied towards construction and 
construction engineering invoices. 
 
City Funds: 

o Louie’s Trenching – Pay Application #1 for $13,429.80 
o Construction Engineering Invoices from IIW (#74378 & #74510) for $777.07 

Total City Funds = $14,206.87 
 
 
Also attached is a total project funds log worksheet that keeps track of the overall project budget. Once 
approved, it will take approximately 4-6 weeks before the City receives the loan funds. Once the City 
receives the loan funds they can pay the following invoices with IEPA funds and with City funds: 
 
 Louie’s Trenching $319,807.04 
      IEPA Funds  - $306,377.24 
      City Funds - $13,429.80 
 IIW Engineering  $18,504.50 
      IEPA Funds - $17,727.43 
      City Funds - $777.07  
 
 

Page 51 of 69



9-Sep-20

Payment Requests Request CONSTRUCTION LOAN Date Voucher # Amount
Processed DESIGN OBSERVATION LOUIES TRENCHING ADMINISTRATION CONTINGENCY TOTAL Pymt Rec'd

Total Project Budget 110,000.00$             127,300.00$       1,384,717.00$             35,000.00$                38,530.71$           1,695,547.71$       
Total IEPA Budget 102,432.00$             118,817.00$      1,284,357.00$             35,000.00$                38,530.71$           1,579,136.71$       
Total City Funds 7,568.00$                 8,483.00$            100,360.00$                 -$                            -$                       116,411.00$          

Request #1 Request #1
IIW - Inv #68997, 69118, 69317, 69462, 69953, 70068 110,000.00$              -$                     -$                               -$                            -$                       110,000.00$          
70237, 70914, 71061, 71249, 71632, 71992, 73564

-$                            -$                     -$                               -$                            -$                       -$                        

Total Request #1 7/13/2020 110,000.00$              -$                     -$                               -$                            -$                       110,000.00$          ######

Total Funds Disbursed 110,000.00$             -$                     -$                              -$                           -$                       110,000.00$          #####
Total Funds Remaining -$                           127,300.00$      1,384,717.00$             35,000.00$               38,530.71$          1,585,547.71$       #####

************************
Request #2 Request #2
Louie's Trenching - Pay Application #1 -$                            -$                     319,807.04$                 -$                            319,807.04$          City Funds (4.2% sewer ineligible) $13,429.80
IIW - Inv #74378 & #74510 -$                            18,504.50$         -$                               -$                            -$                       18,504.50$            City Funds (4.2% sewer ineligible) $777.07

Total Request #2 9/14/2020 -$                            18,504.50$         319,807.04$                 -$                            -$                       338,311.54$           ###### IEPA Funds $324,104.67

Total Funds Disbursed - 110,000.00$             18,504.50$        319,807.04$                -$                           -$                       448,311.54$          #####
Total Funds Remaining - -$                           108,795.50$      1,064,909.96$             35,000.00$               38,530.71$          1,247,236.17$       #####
************************

CITY OF GALENA
EAST SIDE UTILITY SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT - L17-1946

IEPA DISBURSEMENT REQUEST SPREADSHEET

ENGINEERING
IEPA Payment Information

Page 52 of 69



Page 53 of 69



Page 54 of 69



Page 55 of 69



Page 56 of 69



Page 57 of 69



Page 58 of 69



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:    Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    September 1, 2020 

RE:    Employee Insurance 
 

Our employee health, dental, life, and short‐term disability insurance policies are subject to 
renewal November 1.  This report explains the cost changes, the costs relative to budget, and 
recommends renewing each policy.   
 
Policy Renewal 
The health insurance premium with Blue Cross/Blue Shield of Illinois (BCBS) is the largest 
component of the employee insurance package.  We have 26 employees on a high‐deductible, 
lower premium, Health Savings Account (HSA) policy and one employee on a more traditional 
deductible and co‐pay policy. The renewal rates are proposed to increase 11.1%. Based on our 
current employee census, the premium cost of our health‐only policies would be $476,707. With 
fewer employees than last year, the actual cost increase is 3.5% increase over the current year.  
 
We obtained alternate quotes from Blue Cross/Blue Shield for policies similar to ours.  We found 
that our policy is grandfathered, and comparable current BCBS policies are more costly.  We also 
requested quotes from other health insurance companies to measure the competitiveness of our 
BCBS policy premium. Four companies were invited to quote. Three companies provided quotes.  
The comparison of quotes is shown below in Table 1. Our current policy was determined to be 
most competitive.  
 

Table 1. Comparison of Health Insurance Policy Costs 

 
 

Health Insurance Company 
Premium  
Cost 

Percent Increase  
from Current 

BCBS Renewal (Current Policy)  $476,707 11.1% 
United Healthcare   $563,393 15.7% 
Aetna  $564,834 15.9% 
Humana  $815,457 67.5% 
Cigna  Declined to quote NA 

 
Under the proposed renewal scenario, we would retain our dental coverage with MetLife.  The 
monthly premiums would be unchanged from the current year. Based on the current employee 
census, the annual dental premium would be $21,740, a 9.8% increase. The increase is attributable 
to employees opting into the dental plan or moving to family coverage which is more costly.  

 

Page 59 of 69



2 of 3 

 
Our life and short‐term disability policies are through Argus. After significant savings last year, the 
Argus policy premiums would be unchanged for this year. The life and disability policies are 
relatively low cost with premiums of $1,370 and $870, respectively.    
 
The actual cost of all four policies, based on our current employee census, and the percent 
changes from last year are shown in Table 2. 

 
Table 2.  Proposed Insurance Renewal Premiums 

 
 

Policy 
Renewal 
Cost 

Percent 
Change 

BCBS Health  $476,707 3.5% 
Met Life Dental  $21,740 9.8% 
Argus Life  $1,370 ‐10% 
Argus Short‐term Disability  $870 ‐10% 

 
Rate History 
The year‐to‐year change based on actual costs for each of our four policies for the years 2017‐
2021 is shown in Table 3 below.  The average annual change is also listed.  The proposed 
premiums are shown in year 2020‐21 and highlighted in yellow. 

 
Table 3.  Insurance Premium Change per Year: 2017‐2021 

 
 

Policy 
2016‐17 
Change 

2017‐18 
Change 

2018‐19 
Change 

2019‐20 
Change 

2020‐21 
Change 

5‐Year 
Average 

     
BCBS Health  3.00% 0.58% ‐0.7% 7.2% 3.5%  2.72%
Met Life Dental  4.90% ‐11.50% ‐15.40% 6.0% 9.8%  ‐1.24%
Argus Life  6.8% ‐24% 0% ‐12.9% ‐10.3%  ‐7.92%
Argus Short‐term Disability  0.00% ‐2.90% 0.00% ‐22.7% ‐10.2%  ‐7.12%

 
Employee Share of Premium Costs 
In accordance with current collective bargaining contracts, each union employee will pay 20% of 
his/her combined premium for health, dental, life and disability.  Each non‐union employee will 
also pay 20% of his/her combined premium cost.  With the proposed policies and premiums, our 
26 covered employees would pay a total of $101,137 toward premiums.    
 
Cost Comparison with Budget  
Proposed insurance renewal costs exceed the budget. The City’s share of the expected insurance 
premium costs for the insurance year, the current year budget for the expenses, and the projected 
budget surplus or deficit for each policy is shown in Table 4 on the next page. The proposed 
policies exceed the budget by $17,598. 
 

   

Page 60 of 69



3 of 3 

Table 4.  Proposed Insurance Renewal Premiums (City Share) vs. Budget 

 
 

Policies 
Projected  
Annual Cost  

Current Year 
Budget 

Budget 
Surplus/‐Deficit 

 
Health  $381,365 $365,000 ‐$16,365

Dental  $17,392 $15,900 ‐$1,492
Life and Short‐term Disability   $1,791 $2,050 $259

 TOTAL $400,548 $382,950 ‐$17,598

 
Vision Insurance 
For the past three years, we have offered vision insurance to employees on a voluntary basis with 
the participating employees responsible for all premium costs.  Last year we shifted to Argus with 
the Davis Vision Network. The rates would be frozen this year as part of a two‐year rate package.  
Again, participating employees pay 100% of the vision premium costs.   
 
Health Savings Account  
When the City transitioned to the high deductible Health Savings Account in 2009, employee out‐
of‐pocket costs increased while the City realized a significant savings in health insurance 
premiums.  The City shared the premium savings with employees by distributing dollars to each 
participating employee’s Health Savings Account (to be spent on eligible healthcare costs).  The 
distribution is made annually on January 1.  The amount distributed to each employee is based on 
the cost of their health policy and whether they elect dental coverage.  For the coming calendar 
year, HSA contributions to employees are again frozen at the 2017 level, unless the employee 
voluntarily elects a lower level of health coverage.  In such a case, the HSA distribution to that 
employee would decrease.  The total cost of the HSA distributions to employee accounts on 
January 1, 2021 would be $78,704.  This expense is $10,000 less than last year as we have three 
vacant employee positions. The budget contains $88,730 for the HSA program, or $10,026 more 
than expected expenses.   
 
Recommendation 
While we have a projected deficit of $17,600 from our health and dental policies, the savings 
expected with the HSA distributions would cut the deficit to $7,575.  Since the new insurance year 
begins November 1, six months into our fiscal year, only half the deficit or $3,790, would be 
realized this fiscal year. A budget amendment should be executed to fund the insurance expense 
accounts appropriately.  The amendment would draw from the savings of the General Fund or 
another fund such as the Sewer Fund.    
 
I recommend you approve the proposed policies with BlueCross, MetLife and Argus for health, 
dental, life and short‐term disability, respectively.  I also recommend that you approve the 
voluntary vision program with Argus.  Finally, I recommend that you approve the distribution of 
HSA funds to employee accounts, effective January 1, 2021, in accordance with the Health Savings 
Account Policy. 
 
Thank you for your consideration. 
  
 

 

Page 61 of 69



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     1
Input Dates: 8/25/2020 - 9/30/2020 Sep 10, 2020  09:34AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

ACCESS SYSTEMS (120783)
907467 1 Invoice TONER 08/19/2020 13.57 01.13.512.04

Total ACCESS SYSTEMS (120783): 13.57

ADDOCO INC (971)
00007575 1 Invoice PLAYGROUND MATTING 08/28/2020 480.00 17.52.517.02

Total ADDOCO INC (971): 480.00

ARGUS DENTAL & VISION INC. (120754)
212781 1 Invoice VISION INSURANCE 08/21/2020 121.21 01.13.451.01

Total ARGUS DENTAL & VISION INC. (120754): 121.21

AT & T (LOCAL) (103)
090120 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/PHONE 09/01/2020 53.94 01.41.552.00
090120 2 Invoice POLICE/PHONE 09/01/2020 255.14 01.21.552.00
090120 3 Invoice ADMINISTRATION/PHON 09/01/2020 370.77 01.13.552.00
090120 4 Invoice FLOOD CONTROL/PHON 09/01/2020 49.74 20.25.515.00

Total AT & T (LOCAL) (103): 729.59

B & S TURF TEAM (362)
082920 1 Invoice WEED SPRAY/TRAINING  08/29/2020 135.00 22.22.929.00

Total B & S TURF TEAM (362): 135.00

BLAIN'S FARM & FLEET (120547)
3630 1 Invoice DOG FOOD/HEKTOR 08/31/2020 28.99 01.21.651.00

Total BLAIN'S FARM & FLEET (120547): 28.99

CNA SURETY DIRECT BILL (886)
090920 1 Invoice NOTARY BOND/MARY 09/09/2020 30.00 01.21.651.00

Total CNA SURETY DIRECT BILL (886): 30.00

COMELEC SERVICES INC. (244)
0472349 1 Invoice REPAIR STORM SIREN 08/21/2020 197.00 22.22.512.00

Total COMELEC SERVICES INC. (244): 197.00

DMASWA (120782)
892514 1 Invoice GLASS RECYCLING 09/04/2020 137.70 13.44.540.06

Total DMASWA (120782): 137.70

DORNER COMPANY (120866)
154021 1 Invoice PRV/DODGE STREET 08/31/2020 571.00 51.42.929.00

Total DORNER COMPANY (120866): 571.00

Page 62 of 69



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     2
Input Dates: 8/25/2020 - 9/30/2020 Sep 10, 2020  09:34AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

DUBUQUE FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC. (631)
155444 1 Invoice EXTINGUISHER RECHAR 08/06/2020 224.00 01.13.511.01
155447 1 Invoice SAFETY 08/06/2020 390.85 01.41.652.05
155448 1 Invoice FIRE SAFETY 08/06/2020 465.79 58.54.532.01
155449 1 Invoice EXTINGUISHER RECHAR 08/06/2020 474.60 01.21.549.00
155805 1 Invoice EXTINGUISHER RECHAR 08/11/2020 327.00 22.22.652.00

Total DUBUQUE FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC. (631): 1,882.24

EXACT PEST SOLUTIONS, INC. (120708)
21954 1 Invoice PEST CONTROL 08/17/2020 80.00 58.54.511.00

Total EXACT PEST SOLUTIONS, INC. (120708): 80.00

GALENA ARC (850)
090920 1 Invoice HAHN COUNCIL SALARY  09/09/2020 100.00 01.11.432.00

Total GALENA ARC (850): 100.00

GALENA GAZETTE (34)
7543 1 Invoice MASK UP ADS 08/31/2020 250.00 01.11.552.01

Total GALENA GAZETTE (34): 250.00

GASSER @ GALENA (24)
083120 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 08/31/2020 10.75 01.13.511.02
083120 2 Invoice SUPPLIES 08/31/2020 53.99 01.21.513.06
083120 3 Invoice SUPPLIES 08/31/2020 21.59 01.21.651.00
083120 4 Invoice SUPPLIES 08/31/2020 58.06 01.41.511.00
083120 5 Invoice SUPPLIES 08/31/2020 25.07 01.41.514.06
083120 6 Invoice SUPPLIES 08/31/2020 5.38 01.41.579.02
083120 7 Invoice SUPPLIES 08/31/2020 4.20 01.41.613.12
083120 8 Invoice SUPPLIES 08/31/2020 73.65 01.41.652.00
083120 9 Invoice SUPPLIES 08/31/2020 179.42 01.41.652.05
083120 10 Invoice SUPPLIES 08/31/2020 127.01 01.41.653.00
083120 11 Invoice SUPPLIES 08/31/2020 126.76 17.52.652.00
083120 12 Invoice SUPPLIES 08/31/2020 4.94 20.25.513.00
083120 13 Invoice SUPPLIES 08/31/2020 3.86 22.22.611.00
083120 14 Invoice SUPPLIES 08/31/2020 19.77 22.22.613.00
083120 15 Invoice SUPPLIES 08/31/2020 78.25 59.55.511.01

Total GASSER @ GALENA (24): 792.70

GRTD LAWN CARE (120858)
1958 1 Invoice GRANT PARK MAINTENA 09/01/2020 325.00 17.52.870.04

Total GRTD LAWN CARE (120858): 325.00

GUY'S TRUCK & TRACTOR SERVICE (119033)
GWI016870 1 Invoice DODGE 1-TON 08/31/2020 121.70 01.41.613.03
GWO18829 1 Invoice 2017 DODGE 1-TON 08/31/2020 121.70 01.41.613.03
GWO18870 1 Invoice DODGE 1-TON 09/04/2020 50.69 01.41.613.03

Page 63 of 69



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     3
Input Dates: 8/25/2020 - 9/30/2020 Sep 10, 2020  09:34AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total GUY'S TRUCK & TRACTOR SERVICE (119033): 294.09

H & H SERVICES (120843)
4045 1 Invoice MOWING DELINQUENT P 09/06/2020 300.00 52.43.929.00

Total H & H SERVICES (120843): 300.00

HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966)
091420 1 Invoice CITY HALL JANITOR 09/14/2020 325.00 01.13.511.07
091420 2 Invoice PUBLIC RESTROOMS AT  09/14/2020 302.50 01.13.511.08
091420 3 Invoice PARKS RESTROOMS 09/14/2020 862.50 17.52.511.00
091420 4 Invoice MARKET HOUSE RESTR 09/14/2020 290.00 01.13.511.09

Total HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966): 1,780.00

HYDE, MARY BETH (101)
090920 1 Invoice GIFT/PRICE 09/09/2020 100.00 01.11.929.01

Total HYDE, MARY BETH (101): 100.00

IAFC MEMBERSHIP (119095)
000064633 1 Invoice DUES 09/09/2020 240.00 22.22.561.00

Total IAFC MEMBERSHIP (119095): 240.00

IL DEPT. OF COM. & ECON. OPP. (119091)
082620 1 Invoice INTEREST REIMBURSEM 08/26/2020 90.00 17.52.870.05

Total IL DEPT. OF COM. & ECON. OPP. (119091): 90.00

ILLINOIS BANK & TRUST (120688)
090320 1 Invoice LOAN PAYMENT/PRINCIP 09/03/2020 39,421.76 60.41.710.03
090320 2 Invoice LOAN PAYMENT/INTERE 09/03/2020 922.82 60.41.720.03

Total ILLINOIS BANK & TRUST (120688): 40,344.58

J & R SUPPLY INCORPORATED (951)
2011931 1 Invoice TOOLS 08/27/2020 260.00 01.41.653.00

Total J & R SUPPLY INCORPORATED (951): 260.00

JL TECH, LLC (120693)
2426 1 Invoice VIRTUAL PRIVATE NETW 06/05/2020 735.00 01.11.552.01
2439 1 Invoice WIRELESS INTERNET PO 06/08/2020 795.00 01.11.552.01
2459 1 Invoice WIRELESS INTERNET CI 09/03/2020 200.00 01.11.552.01

Total JL TECH, LLC (120693): 1,730.00

JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397)
090120 1 Invoice STREET LIGHTS 09/01/2020 5,164.46 15.41.572.00
090120 2 Invoice POLICE/ELECTRIC 09/01/2020 830.96 01.21.571.01
090120 3 Invoice EMS/ELECTRIC 09/01/2020 139.47 12.10.571.01
090120 4 Invoice PARKS/ELECTRIC 09/01/2020 85.79 17.52.571.01

Page 64 of 69



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     4
Input Dates: 8/25/2020 - 9/30/2020 Sep 10, 2020  09:34AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

090120 5 Invoice FLOOD/ELECTRIC 09/01/2020 220.50 20.25.576.01
090120 6 Invoice FIRE/ELECTRIC 09/01/2020 430.67 22.22.576.01
090120 7 Invoice TURNER HALL/ELECTRIC 09/01/2020 1,105.55 58.54.571.01
090120 8 Invoice WELCOME SIGNS 09/01/2020 36.23 01.41.571.01
090120 9 Invoice LIFT STATION 09/01/2020 118.40 52.43.850.09

Total JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397): 8,132.03

JO DAVIESS CTY HEALTH DEPT (121)
081120 1 Invoice B&B INSPECTIONS 08/11/2020 600.00 01.16.546.00
081820 1 Invoice B&B INSPECTIONS 08/18/2020 550.00 01.16.546.00
082020 1 Invoice B&B INSPECTIONS 08/20/2020 600.00 01.16.546.00

Total JO DAVIESS CTY HEALTH DEPT (121): 1,750.00

JO DAVIESS CTY SHERIFF (116)
090120 1 Invoice CITY SHARE OF OFFICE 09/01/2020 200.12 01.21.538.00
090120 2 Invoice RADIO SERVICE 09/01/2020 100.00 22.22.538.00

Total JO DAVIESS CTY SHERIFF (116): 300.12

KRUSER SEPTIC SERVICE, INC. (120515)
40240 1 Invoice SEWER CLEAN PARK AV 08/06/2020 4,654.80 52.43.615.00
40283 1 Invoice SEWER CLEAN PARK AV 09/01/2020 2,727.60 52.43.615.00

Total KRUSER SEPTIC SERVICE, INC. (120515): 7,382.40

KUHN, BRIAN  (236)
090920 1 Invoice UNIFORMS 09/09/2020 97.40 01.41.579.02

Total KUHN, BRIAN  (236): 97.40

LAMAR COMPANIES (120865)
111712522 1 Invoice MASK UP CAMPAIGN 08/20/2020 300.00 01.11.552.01

1117839394 1 Invoice MASK UP CAMPAIGN 08/31/2020 1,170.00 01.11.552.01

Total LAMAR COMPANIES (120865): 1,470.00

LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627)
9307804132 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 08/18/2020 305.15 01.41.652.00

Total LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627): 305.15

LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS (376)
1343164-202 1 Invoice INVESTIGATION PROGR 08/31/2020 36.00 01.21.652.03

Total LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS (376): 36.00

MABAS DIVISION 49 (118991)
090820 1 Invoice DUES (2019) 09/08/2020 290.00 22.22.561.00
090820 2 Invoice DUES (2020) 09/08/2020 296.00 22.22.561.00

Total MABAS DIVISION 49 (118991): 586.00

Page 65 of 69



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     5
Input Dates: 8/25/2020 - 9/30/2020 Sep 10, 2020  09:34AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

MCCOY INSURANCE SERVICE (98)
090220 1 Invoice RURAL FIRE INSURANCE 09/03/2020 3,981.00 22.22.591.00

Total MCCOY INSURANCE SERVICE (98): 3,981.00

MONTGOMERY TRUCKING (133)
210857 1 Invoice REFUSE HANDLING CON 09/01/2020 14,577.25 13.44.540.04
210857 2 Invoice RECYCLING CONTRACT 09/01/2020 5,023.25 13.44.540.00
210857 3 Invoice DUMPSTER RENT 09/01/2020 60.00 13.44.544.03
210857 4 Invoice DUMPSTER DISPOSAL F 09/01/2020 279.00 01.41.573.00
210857 5 Invoice EMPTY GLASS DUMPSTE 09/01/2020 225.00 13.44.540.06

Total MONTGOMERY TRUCKING (133): 20,164.50

MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS - STARCOM (119812)
5198420200 1 Invoice MONTHLY RATE FOR STA 09/01/2020 10.00 01.21.549.00

Total MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS - STARCOM (119812): 10.00

NICOR (151)
090920 1 Invoice TURNER HALL/GAS 09/09/2020 124.32 58.54.571.05
090920 2 Invoice POOL-GAS 09/09/2020 120.39 59.55.571.02

Total NICOR (151): 244.71

NIU (120617)
TEL005957 1 Invoice INTERNET 09/03/2020 360.00 22.22.929.00

Total NIU (120617): 360.00

O'CONNOR, BROOKS & CO. (158)
090220 1 Invoice ANNUAL AUDIT 09/02/2020 22,900.00 11.10.531.00

Total O'CONNOR, BROOKS & CO. (158): 22,900.00

O'HERRON CO.INC., RAY (548)
2048752 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/TONY 09/03/2020 18.14 01.21.471.15

Total O'HERRON CO.INC., RAY (548): 18.14

PETITGOUT, GEORGE (120625)
083120 1 Invoice UTILITY LOCATES 08/31/2020 100.00 01.41.549.00

Total PETITGOUT, GEORGE (120625): 100.00

PETTY CASH/POLICE DEPT. (163)
090820 1 Invoice POSTAGE 09/08/2020 18.40 01.21.551.00

Total PETTY CASH/POLICE DEPT. (163): 18.40

SANDRY FIRE SUPPLY, L.L.C. (118920)
009404 1 Invoice NAMETAGS FOR BUNKE 02/17/2020 97.96 22.22.840.00

Page 66 of 69



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     6
Input Dates: 8/25/2020 - 9/30/2020 Sep 10, 2020  09:34AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total SANDRY FIRE SUPPLY, L.L.C. (118920): 97.96

SECOND CHANCE CARDIAC SOLUTIONS (120048)
20-008-466 1 Invoice ELECTRODES 08/25/2020 79.90 01.21.652.04

Total SECOND CHANCE CARDIAC SOLUTIONS (120048): 79.90

SIGNCRAFT SCREENPRINT, INC. (555)
603294 1 Invoice PARKING LOT SIGNS 08/11/2020 117.80 01.41.652.04

Total SIGNCRAFT SCREENPRINT, INC. (555): 117.80

SPAHN & ROSE LUMBER CO (1166)
520226 1 Invoice SIDEWALK MATERIALS 08/31/2020 386.02 01.41.514.08

Total SPAHN & ROSE LUMBER CO (1166): 386.02

STEINKE, SAM (120450)
082820 1 Invoice RAILING/FIELD STREET 08/28/2020 528.53 01.41.514.04
082820 2 Invoice FLOOD GATE REPAIRS 08/28/2020 333.54 20.25.511.03

Total STEINKE, SAM (120450): 862.07

STRAND ASSOCIATES, INC. (954)
0163152 1 Invoice TOP OFF CONTROLS 08/14/2020 417.77 51.42.532.02

Total STRAND ASSOCIATES, INC. (954): 417.77

TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT REV FUND (120601)
T2102541 1 Invoice MONTHLY CHARGE FOR  08/24/2020 265.62 01.21.542.00

Total TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT REV FUND (120601): 265.62

TOP NOTCH PLUMBING, HEATING  (625)
I27236 1 Invoice RESTROOM THERMOSTA 09/07/2020 967.92 01.13.511.01

Total TOP NOTCH PLUMBING, HEATING  (625): 967.92

TRI-STATE PORTA POTTY, INC. (908)
9421 1 Invoice PARKS/PORTA POTTY 08/18/2020 345.00 17.52.579.01
9421 2 Invoice WASH STATIONS/MAIN S 08/18/2020 150.00 01.11.552.01
9475 1 Invoice TRAINING CENTER PORT 08/18/2020 95.00 22.22.652.00

Total TRI-STATE PORTA POTTY, INC. (908): 590.00

UNIFORM DEN EAST, INC. (119474)
69623 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/CHUCK 08/21/2020 193.55 01.21.471.15

Total UNIFORM DEN EAST, INC. (119474): 193.55

US BANK TRUST (BOND) (577)
5785415 1 Invoice FISCAL AGEND FEES - B 06/25/2020 550.00 01.13.730.00

Page 67 of 69



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     7
Input Dates: 8/25/2020 - 9/30/2020 Sep 10, 2020  09:34AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total US BANK TRUST (BOND) (577): 550.00

US CELLULAR (92)
090120 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/CELL PH 09/01/2020 37.65 01.41.552.00
090120 2 Invoice ADMIN/CELL PHONE 09/01/2020 47.65 01.11.552.00
090120 3 Invoice POLICE/CELL PHONES 09/01/2020 75.30 01.21.552.01
090120 4 Invoice HUNTINGTON/CELL PHO 09/01/2020 36.95 01.216.0
090120 5 Invoice WUEBBEN/CELL PHONE 09/01/2020 43.59 01.261.0
090120 6 Invoice POOL IPADS 09/01/2020 9.46 59.55.552.00

Total US CELLULAR (92): 250.60

US WATER (120719)
SI14687 1 Invoice SEWER CONTRACT 09/01/2020 29,254.62 52.43.515.01
SI14687 2 Invoice WATER CONTRACT 09/01/2020 29,254.63 51.42.515.00

Total US WATER (120719): 58,509.25

VERIZON WIRELESS (316)
062820 2 Adjustmen PAY & DISPLAY 06/28/2020 75.08- 53.48.555.00
090120 1 Invoice PAY & DISPLAY 09/01/2020 75.12 53.48.555.00

9857596980 1 Invoice PAY & DISPLAY 06/15/2020 75.08 53.48.555.00
9861896940 1 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT/VERI 09/01/2020 44.16 22.22.652.00

Total VERIZON WIRELESS (316): 119.28

VINCENT & SONS, J. P.  (507)
082420 1 Invoice WAR MEMORIAL ENGRA 08/24/2020 275.00 17.52.820.06

Total VINCENT & SONS, J. P.  (507): 275.00

WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40)
D093819B 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 08/21/2020 80.20 01.13.654.00
D093821B 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 08/21/2020 80.20 01.13.654.01
D094856A 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 08/21/2020 200.50 01.13.654.00
D094857A 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 08/21/2020 200.50 01.13.654.01

D09613A 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 09/04/2020 150.96 01.13.654.01
D096408 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 08/31/2020 650.90 01.13.654.01
D096412 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 08/31/2020 64.06 01.13.654.01
D096413 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 08/31/2020 497.17 01.13.654.01
D096698 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 09/04/2020 82.84 01.13.654.01

Total WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40): 2,007.33

WEX BANK (119104)
090120 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS-GAS 09/01/2020 583.54 01.41.655.00
090120 2 Invoice PARKS-GAS 09/01/2020 190.23 17.52.655.03
090120 3 Invoice POLICE-GAS 09/01/2020 1,016.62 01.21.655.00
090120 4 Invoice BUILDING-GAS 09/01/2020 52.43 01.46.655.00
090120 5 Invoice FIRE-GAS 09/01/2020 322.18 22.22.655.00

Total WEX BANK (119104): 2,165.00

Page 68 of 69



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     8
Input Dates: 8/25/2020 - 9/30/2020 Sep 10, 2020  09:34AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359)
080920 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS JANITOR 08/09/2020 110.00 01.41.511.01

Total WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359): 110.00

WHITE, KAREN (120266)
091420 1 Invoice POLICE DEPARTMENT JA 09/14/2020 325.00 01.13.411.00

Total WHITE, KAREN (120266): 325.00

WHITE'S LAWN CARE (119092)
13290 1 Invoice TREE REMOVAL 09/01/2020 2,150.00 01.41.517.02

Total WHITE'S LAWN CARE (119092): 2,150.00

WHKS & CO. (119367)
41710 1 Invoice ENGINEERING 08/24/2020 996.00 41.61.860.05

Total WHKS & CO. (119367): 996.00

WIZARD COMPUTERS INC (666)
14254 1 Invoice WIRELESS NETWORK CI 07/15/2020 240.00 01.11.552.01
14259 1 Invoice IPADS FOR REMOTE ME 08/26/2020 6,552.96 01.11.552.01

Total WIZARD COMPUTERS INC (666): 6,792.96

WUEBBEN, TIM (119934)
090820 1 Invoice MEALS/TRAINING 09/08/2020 187.53 01.21.562.00

Total WUEBBEN, TIM (119934): 187.53

Grand Totals: 197,285.08

Report GL Period Summary

Vendor number hash: 4584593
Vendor number hash - split: 5907743
Total number of invoices: 91
Total number of transactions: 139

Terms Description Invoice Amount Net Invoice Amount

Open Terms 197,285.08 197,285.08

Grand Totals: 197,285.08 197,285.08

Page 69 of 69


	00.00 Agenda 09.14.20
	01.0357 Minutes cc082420
	02.0358 Lions Club
	03.0359 Museum Theatrical Performances
	04.0361 Outdoor Seating
	091420b
	GDBA Support Letter
	Chamber Support Letter

	05.0362 Small Cell Ordinance
	Council Memo
	Small-Wireless Ordinance 072820
	Small Cell Pole Agreement

	06.0363 Historic District Boundary
	HD Boundries Memo to Council 9-9-20
	historic district boundary 2020

	07.0364 East Side Water Disbursement #2
	East Side Summary Water Disbursement #2 sept 2020
	East Side Water Disbursement Spreadsheet
	Galena Louies Pay app #1 and IIW invoices

	08.0365 Employee Health Insurance
	09.0366 Warrants 09.14.20



